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STIPULATION 

Comph1inant. the Enforcement Division of the Fair Political Practices Commission, and 

R~~rxmdcnu.: AnHtllllY A ... Tony" Stri ckland. Strickland For Controller 20 I 0 and Lysn Ray. hert!hy agree 

that th1:.. ~llpulahun will be :-.ubmtllcu fur consideration by the Fatr Polit~eal Practices C'ummi swn at it-; 

nc\l regularly Sl'hcdulcd mc~hng. 

The pm'tic!'> agree tu en ter intu thi s Stipulution to rcsolw all factua l and legal issues rat))Cd by th1s 

m::tllt.:r and to re:.~ch ;1 final di sposi tion without the necessity uf holding an additional administrative 

hem mg. to determine the habtl it) of Strick land . Striddand for tmlrollcr. and Ray. 

Strickland, Strickland i'or Controlkr, and Ray undcrstanu, and h~reby knowingly and voluntarily 

\\ aiv~:. <my and all procedural right:-. . t!t fonh m Govcrnrncnt Code Sections 83 115.5, 11 503 and 11523, 

mH.l in California Code of RegulallOtl:o., tt tle 2. Sectam!> I R36 1.1 through I 836 1.9. This includes. but t<; 

nm !united to the right hJ pcrs~.mally ~ppcur at any administnttJVe hearing hdd in thi~ matter. w he 

S III'ULATION. DFliSIO AND ORI>[R 
I 1'1'£ Cl~l· o II n-_:; 
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n.:rn.:scnted hy an attorney at S t ricklnnd·~. Strickland for Controller's. and Ray'.s own expense. to 

~lmth)nt and crost..-~.:.xamine all witncs~cs testifying at tht.: hearing. to subpoena witncs es to testify at the 

11~·;1ring. to haw an impartia l administrutivc law judge preside over the hearing as a hearing otliccr. and 

-1 tu h::t\ <.' Lhc matrer judicially rc\ icwed. 

" It is fu rther :>tlpulatcd und ~greed thnt Strick land. Strickland for Controller. and Ray violated the 

t' Pnl1t1cJI Rdorm Act as descrihcc.l in l~x h i bit I : St rickland. Strickland for Controller. and Ray 

7 purposefully lll m:gligcn tl y caused. or aided and abetted. three pcr:::ons to make four eannarkcd. over-

:-; thc-lnnit t:ontributions tohl ling $65,000 to Strickland for Controller in the names of Ventura Count) 

l) R~pubhcan Party ("VCRP'' ) and Sl.;lni!'>lmas Republ ican Central Committee (State cd . ). abo known :1..') 

10 Stani~> l au" County Republican Party r·scRP"). violating Government Code Sections 8430 1. 8530 1 and 

II ~5704. and R\!gulation I S5~5 . subliiv1sion (a)( I) {4 counts ); and filed false campaign statements for the 

12 r\!rorting pcnod:-. of May 2~ through June 30. 20 I 0. und October 17 through Dcccmbl:r 3 1. 2010. 

I 1. conceal ing the "iolations described 1n Counts I through 4 by falsel y rcpor1ing that Strickland l't1r 

14 Controller re~ei\ ed contributions from VCRP nnd SCR 1'. when the contributions were made by other 

15 per,on~ .• md VC RP aml SC'RP \\ Crc the intcrmcJa nri~.:s for the transactions. \'iolating Gover11ment Code 

If, s~cllon f-:42 11. subdi" ision (!') (4 t:uunts). Exhibit 1 is allachcd hereto and incorporated by rcfcrcm:e as 

I i thPugh rull) ... ~t forth herein. Exhibn l i~ u true and accurate summary of the fact~ in this matter. 

I :-1 Strll.:kland. Stri~kland lor Conlrollcr, and Ray ngn.'~ to the issuance of tJ'tc Ol!cis ion and Order. 

141 \\ lw.:h i-. alluched hereto. Strickland. Stril.!klund for Controller, and Rn) aJ~u agree lo the Commission 

20 1mpu~ing an admtntstrati\ c penaJty in the total amount of Forty Thousand Dollars ($40.000). A cashier·~ 

21 chel'!. from Strickland. Strickland for Controller. and Ray in saiJ umount. made payabll! to the "General 

,., h 11 1<.1 ur the St..1t~ of Cali fornia ." i:-. submi tted wi th thi"i Stipulation as full payment of the admin istrati \ e 

23 penalty. and shall be held by the State of Califontia until the Commission issues its Decision and Order 

24 regard ing this m<~ll er. 

25 The partie. agree that in the cvctll the Commission refuse~ tn accept this Stipulation. it shall 

2r~ h~~.:omc null and 'oid, anJ wirh in fifteen ( 15) business days after the Commission meeting at which the 

27 Sli pulution is rejected. nll payments t~.:ndcrcd by Strickland. St rickland for Controller. and Ray in 

~X C\'nnection will' this Stipulation shall bt! r~imbun.cd to Strickland. Strickland for Cuntroller. and Ray 

\TIP\'l \ llON. DFt ISIDNAND ORDER 



Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray further stipulate and agree that in the event the Commission 

2 rejects the Stipulation, and a full evidentiary hearing before the Cotnmission becon1es necessary, neither 1 

I 

3 any member of the Con1n1ission, nor the Executive Director, shall be disqualified because of prior 

4 consideration of this Stipulation. 

5 

6 Dated: 
Galena West, Chief, on Behalf of the Enforcen1ent Division 

7 Fair Political Practices Comtnission 

L) Dated: 
Anthony A. "Tony" Strickland, Respondent, individually and 

I 0 on behalf of Strickland For Controller 20 I 0, Respondent 

II 

Lys~~ 12 Dated: 

13 

14 

15 DECISION AND ORDER 

16 The foregoing Stipulation of the parties "'In the Matter of Anthony A. "Tony" Strickland, 

I 7 Strickland For Controller 2010 and Lysa Ray," FPPC Case No. 111073, including all attached exhibits, I 
18 is hereby accepted as the final decision and order of the Fair Political Practices Comtnission, effective 

19 upon execution below by the Chair. 

20 IT IS SO ORDERED. 

21 Dated: 
Joann Ren1ke, Chair 

22 Fair Political Practices Comn1ission 

23 

24 

26 

27 

28 
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EXHIBIT 1 

INTRODUCTION 

Respondent Anthony A. "Tony" Strickland served in the California Legislature for ten 
years: as a State Senator, 19th District, from 2008 through 2012, and as a State Assemblymember, 
37th District, from 1998 through 2004. Strickland was an unsuccessful candidate for California 
State Controller in the November 2, 2010 general election, and he unsuccessfully ran for Congress 
in 2012 and 2014. Respondent Strickland for Controller 2010, was Strickland's candidate 
controlled committee. Respondent Lysa Ray was the treasurer for Strickland for Controller. 

Ventura County Republican Party ("VCRP") was a political party committee located in 
Camarillo, CA. Arkady Milgram was the treasurer for VCRP. VCRP and Milgram are named 
respondents in the companion case, FPPC Case No. 16/100. 

Stanislaus Republican Central Committee (State Acct.), also known as Stanislaus County 
Republican Party ("SCRP"), was a political party committee located in Modesto, CA. Respondent 
Gary McKinsey was the treasurer for SCRP. SCRP and McKinsey are named respondents in the 
companion case, FPPC Case No. 16/178, for which a stipulation was approved by the Commission 
on March 17, 2016. 

The Political Reform Act (the "Act")1 requires committees to accurately disclose 
contributions and expenditures. The Act prohibits contributions made in the name of another, 
prohibits earmarking contributions unless the intermediary and original contributor information is 
disclosed, and imposes campaign contribution limits regarding the making and receiving of certain 
contributions. In 2010, an individual wishing to contribute to a candidate for California State 
Controller could not contribute more than $6,500 per election. However, at that time, there was no 
limit on contributions from a political party county central committee to that same candidate. 

In 2010, VCRP and SCRP made $65,000 in contributions to Strickland for Controller. 
However VCRP and SCRP were not the true sources of the contributions, and the true sources of 
the contributions were concealed. Strickland, Strickland for Controller and Ray violated the Act 
by causing over-the-limit, earmarked contributions to be made in VCRP's and SCRP's names to 
Strickland for Controller and filing false campaign statements concealing that activity. 

SUMMARY OF THE LAW 

All legal references and discussions of law pertain to the Act's provisions as they existed 
in 2010. 

Ill 

1 The Political Reform Act is contained in Government Code §§ 81000 through 91014, and all statutory 
references are to this code. The regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission are contained in §§ 18110 
through 18997 ofTitle 2 of the California Code of Regulations, and all regulatory references are to this source. 
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Need for Liberal Construction and Vigorous Enf~rcement of the Political R~form Act 

When enacting the Political Reform Act, the people of the state of California found and 
declared that previous laws regulating political practices suffered from inadequate enforcement by 
state and local authorities.2 To that end, the Act must be liberally construed to achieve its 
purposes.3 

There are many purposes of the Act. One purpose is to ensure that receipts and expenditures 
in election campaigns are fully and truthfully disclosed so that voters are fully informed and 
improper practices are inhibited.4 Another is to provide adequate enforcement mechanisms so that 
the Act will be "vigorously enforced."5 

Definition of Controlled Committee 

A "committee" includes any person or combination of persons who receives contributions 
totaling $1,000 or more in a calendar year,6 commonly known as a "recipient committee." A 
recipient committee which is controlled directly or indirectly by a candidate, or which acts jointly 
with a candidate in connection with the making of expenditures, is a "controlled committee. "7 A 
candidate controls a committee if he or she, his or her agent, or any other committee he or she 
controls has a significant influence on the actions or decisions of the committee. 8 

Definition of Political Party Committee 

A "political party committee" includes the county central committee of an organization 
that meets the requirements for recognition as a political party pursuant to Section 5100 of the 
Elections Code. 9 

Prohibition Against Making Contributions in the Name of Another 

It is unlawful to make a contribution in the name of another. 10 This prohibition keeps the 
public informed as to the sources of campaign contributions, and it ensures that contributors abide 
by the Act's contribution limits. 

Duty to Disclose Intermediary 

The Act prohibits any person from making a contribution while acting as the intermediary 
of another, without disclosing to the recipient of the contribution both the intermediary's own full 

2 § 81001, subd. (h). 
3 § 81003. 
4 § 81002, subd. (a). 
5 § 81002, subd. (f). 
6 § 82013, subd. (a). 
7 § 82016. 
8 § 82016, subd. (a). 
9 § 85205. 
10 § 84301. 
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name, street address, occupation, and employer, and the original contributor's full name, street 
address, occupation, and employer. 11 The Act also states that a person is an intermediary for a 
contribution if the recipient of the contribution "would consider the person to be the contributor 
without the disclosure of the identity of the true source of the contribution." 12 

Prohibition on Earmarking 

It is unlawful to make a contribution to a committee on the condition or with the agreement 
that it will be contributed to any particular candidate unless the contribution is fully disclosed 
pursuant to Section 84302. 13 

Campaign Contribution Limits 

The Act imposes campaign contribution limits with respect to the making and receiving of 
certain contributions. These limits are adjusted periodically, and different limits apply depending 
upon who is contributing and who is receiving. 14 

In 2010, an individual wishing to contribute to a candidate for California State Controller 
could not contribute more than $6,500 per election. 15 However, at that time, there was no limit on 
contributions from a political party committee (such as a county central committee) to that same 
candidate. In 2010, there was a calendar year limit of $32,400 with respect to how much an 
individual could contribute to a political party committee for the purpose of making contributions 
to candidates for State Controller. 16 Individuals could exceed this amount so long as the excess 
was not used by the committee to support/oppose candidates for elective state office. 

Aggregation of Campaign Contributions by Affiliated Entities 

For purposes of the Act's contribution limits, contributions of an entity whose contributions 
are directed and controlled by any individual must be aggregated with contributions made by that 
individual and any other entity whose contributions are directed and controlled by the same 
individual! 7 An entity is any person, other than an individual! 8 A person is as an individual, 
proprietorship, firm, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, business trust, company, corporation, 
limited liability company, association, committee, and any other organization or group of persons 
acting in concert. 19 

Ill 

II§ 84302. 
12 Reg. 18432.5, subd. (a). 
13 § 85704. 
14 §§ 83124, 85301 and 85303, and Reg. 18545. 
15 § 85301, subd. (b); Reg. 18545, subd. (a)(2). 
16 § 85303, subd. (b); Reg. 18545, subd. (a)(8). 
17 § 85311, subd. (b). 
18 § 85311, subd. (a)(l). 
19 § 82047. 
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Duty to Disclose Accurate Contributor Information on Campaign Statements 

The Act requires committees to report on campaign statements the following information 
about a person who has made contributions of$100 or more: (1) full name; (2) street address; (3) 
occupation; (4) employer, or if self-employed, the name ofthe contributor's business; (5) the date 
and amount of each contribution received from the contributor during the reporting period; and ( 6) 
the cumulative amount of contributions received from the contributor. 20 

Liability for Violations 

Any person who violates any provision of the Act, who purposely or negligently causes 
any other person to violate any provision of the Act, or who aids and abets any other person in the 
violation of any provision of the Act, is liable for administrative penalties up to $5,000 per 
violation.21 This only applies to persons who have filing or reporting obligations under the Act, or 
who are compensated for services involving the planning, organizing or directing of any activity 
regulated or required by the Act. 22 

Candidate and Treasurer Liability 

Every committee must have a treasurer. 23 It is the duty of a committee's candidate and 
treasurer to ensure that the committee complies with all of the requirements of the Act concerning 
the receipt and expenditure of funds and the reporting of such funds. 24 A committee's candidate 
and treasurer may be held jointly and severally liable with the committee for any reporting 
violations.25 

Joint and Several Liability 

If two or more parties are responsible for a violation of the Act, they are jointly and 
severally liable. 26 

SUMMARY OF THE FACTS 

Laundered Campaign Contributions 

Records show that in 2010, Strickland for Controller hired Pluvious Group, a political 
fundraising firm located in Los Angeles, CA. Matthew Jubitz, owner of Pluvious Group, told 
Enforcement Division staff that he worked closely with Strickland, and reported fundraising 
activity directly to Strickland. Jubitz testified that Pluvious Group maintained a detailed and 
extensive contributor contact list, which Pluvious Group used when fundraising for Strickland's 

20 § 84211, subd. (f). 
21 §§ 83116, and 83116.5. 
22 § 83116.5. 
23 § 84100. 
24 §§ 81004,84100, 84104 and 84213, and Reg. 18427. 
25 §§ 83116.5 and 91006. 
26 § 91006. 
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campaign. Pluvious Group promoted Strickland's campaign to contributors and communities, 
created fundraising materials, planned, organized and hosted fundraisers, and collected 
contributions for Strickland for Controller related to these efforts. Pluvious Group received a 15% 
commission for all contributions it secured for Strickland's campaign. 

Records show that because Strickland agreed to be part of the same ticket as Meg Whitman, 
the 2010 Republican candidate for California governor, Strickland for Controller set a fundraising 
goal of $2 million. 

In 2010, VCRP also hired Pluvious Group for fundraising work. The contract stated that 
Pluvious Group would be paid a 15% commission for all contributions it secured for VCRP. 

William M. Templeton, a resident of Dallas, TX, who had significant business interests in 
oil and gas production and real estate in Ventura County, CA, told Enforcement Division staff that 
in March 2010, Strickland telephoned him. Templeton stated that during the telephone 
conversation, he agreed to give $13,000 to Strickland's campaign for State Controller, the 
maximum allowed under the Act for both the primary and general elections. On March 29, 2010, 
Templeton sent an email to Jubitz stating that he was sending a $13,000 check. Templeton signed 
a check dated March 29, 2010, for $13,000 to Strickland's Controller campaign. Records show 
that Strickland for Controller received Templeton's maximum contribution on 
April6, 2010. 

According to his testimony, Templeton wanted to do more to support pro-business 
candidates in Ventura County without getting personally involved in local races. An email thread 
between Templeton and Jubitz dated June 4, 2010, indicates that Strickland and Templeton had 
discussed Templeton making contributions to VCRP and to Meg Whitman, and Strickland was to 
ask Jubitz where Templeton should send his checks. Jubitz instructed Templeton to send both 
checks to him at Pluvious Group. On June 7, 2010, Templeton wrote a check to VCRP for $32,400, 
the maximum allowed for candidate support to a political party committee. Templeton testified 
that he had no contact with VCRP and sent the check to Jubitz. Jubitz testified that he delivered 
the check to VCRP. Records show that VCRP received Templeton's check on 
June 11, 2010, three days after the primary election. 

Similarly, Andrew Barth, an investment manager residing in San Marino, CA, made a 
maximum contribution to Strickland for Controller and a large contribution to VCRP. Records 
show that on June 10, 2010, Jubitz sent an email to Barth stating in part: 

As per our conversation, I have attached the general election contribution 
information for Tony. You and Avery can do the max of$13,000. I also put the 
form for the Ventura County Republican Party Candidate direct committee. 

Really appreciate your support. 

On June 11, 2010, Barth wrote two checks. He wrote the first check to Strickland for 
Controller for the primary election totaling $6,500. He wrote the second check to VCRP totaling 
$15,000. Jubitz testified that Barth sent the $15,000 check to him, and he delivered the check to 
VCRP. 
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On June 15, 2010, Jubitz emailed a fundraising Progress Report for Strickland for 
Controller to Strickland, and his chiefs of staff, Chris W angsaporn and Kirk Hutson. This email 
thread followed: 

Wangsaporn: does your amount include party money? Lysa [Ray] has us taking 
in 452,700 

Jubitz: Have we received any party money? 

Wangsaporn: I thought templetom [sic] was doing something with vc gop? 

Jubitz: He did. 32,400 ... but I am not aware of whether or not a donation 
from VCRP has come in to Strickland for Controller. 

Wangsaporn: You're right we have not yet. But should we add a line item for 
'vc gop' It would be whatever the amount raised/pledged minus 
7% 

Jubitz: I know. Tony and I decided no. 

Following up on the contributions through VCRP, on June 28, 2010, Wangsaporn sent an 
email to Strickland and Jubitz, subject line: "FYI VCGOP check": 

Tony- you received 

32,400 templeton 
15,000 barth 

Total of 47,400 

After taking out 2800 for VCRP 7% and 7,110 for Jubitz 15% Mike [Osborn, 
VCRP Chairman] will be cutting you a check for 37,490. 

Strickland responded to all: 

No!!!! Don't take Jubitz out. We will pay Jubitz from our acct. We need to hit 2 
million raised for team meg. 

A few minutes later, Strickland followed up his response with: 

Have mike [Osborn] write a 45k check to us. (He can get us 600 dollars). 
Matthew--do you think sue groff will do anything before the 30th?? If not get 
45k check from vcgop. 

Wangsaporn replied: "What are you talking about 600 dollars?" Strickland responded: 

47,400 raised. [Minus] 7 percent 2800 equals 44,600. Vcgop gives us 400 to 
equal45k. 400 not 600. 

Records show that on June 28 and 30, 2010, VCRP sent two checks to Strickland for 
Controller, $44,100 and $900, totaling $45,000. Strickland for Controller received the checks on 
June 30, 2010. The evidence shows that VCRP actually retained 5% of the original amounts from 
Templeton and Barth. 

6 
EXHIBIT I IN SUPPORT OF STIPULATION, DECISION AND ORDER 

FPPC NO. 11/073 



Despite Templeton having made the maximum contribution to Strickland and contributing 
another $30,750 through VCRP, Jubitz sent a campaign letter dated August 6, 2010, to Templeton, 
signed by Strickland, inviting Templeton to attend a fundraising event in Thousand Oaks on 
September 23, 2010, for Strickland's campaign. Under the subject line "Strickland Event," 
Templeton emailed Jubitz on August 13, 2010, asking, "Can I contribute any more ??" Jubitz 
forwarded the email to Strickland, saying, "I'm going to ask for [California Republican Party], 
unless you say otherwise." Strickland replied, "V cgop," and later followed up: 

We should get the 30k to vcgop. That is what the [sic] can get that vcgop can 
give directly to candidates. If he has a wife we should ask for 60k 

In August 2010, Templeton planned to travel to Sacramento on business. Templeton 
emailed W angsaporn on August 22, 2010, requesting to meet with Strickland while he was in 
Sacramento. 

Soon after the meeting, on September 8, 2010, Jubitz sent an email to Templeton 
confirming his "generous pledge of $32,400" to SCRP. Templeton corrected him, replying, "I am 
still looking at this. I will do something to Stanislaus, but it won't be the $32,400." Jubitz testified 
that Pluvious Group did not have a fundraising contract with SCRP. 

On October 5, 2010, Jubitz sent an email to Templeton inviting him to an "intimate" dinner 
gathering hosted by Strickland, which was eventually held on October 12, 2010 at Sly's, a popular 
restaurant in Carpinteria, CA. Jubitz testified that between 10 and 13 people attended, including 
Strickland, his wife, Audra, Jubitz, and Templeton. According to Jubitz' and Templeton's 
testimony, everyone sat at one large table, and conversation topics included the 201 0 Controller's 
race and the need for more contributions. 

One week later, records show that Templeton wrote a check to SCRP for $15,000. 
Templeton testified that he had no contact with SCRP and sent the contribution check to Jubitz. 
Jubitz delivered the check to SCRP, who received Templeton's contribution on 
October 26, 2010. 

Similarly, records show that Matthew Swanson, president of Associated Feed & Supply 
Co. and other Swanson Family companies in Turlock, CA, made a maximum contribution to 
Strickland for Controller through his business and a large contribution to SCRP. In May 2010, 
Swanson, through Associated Feed, made the maximum contribution to Strickland for Controller 
for the primary election, $6,500. In September 2010, Swanson, through his investment company, 
Prospector, LLC, made the maximum contribution to Strickland for Controller for the general 
election, $6,500. Because Swanson directed and controlled the contributions of his two companies, 
the contributions were attributed to Swanson. So Swanson gave the maximum contributions to 
Strickland for Controller. 

Ill 
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Records show that on October 25, 2010, Maria Stavrakas ofPluvious Group sent an email 
to Deanna Lascano, executive assistant to Swanson, as follows: 

Hi Dee Anna [sic], 

The check should be made payable to 

Stanislaus County Republican Party 

and overnight to our office: 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 

Did Matt [Swanson] say how much he decided to contribute? 

I will also send you Major Donor forms in a separate email. 

Thanks so much for your help. 

Lascano responded on October 26, 2010: "He asked me to fill out a check for $5,000. Thanks for 
the forms and address. I will have Ron cut the check today if possible, otherwise it will go out 
tomorrow." Stavrakas forwarded the email thread to Jubitz the same day. Records show that on 
October 26, 2010, Swanson, again through Prospector, sent a $5,000 check to SCRP. 

Records also show that on October 28, 2010, Stavrakas sent an email to Strickland, stating, 
"Matt Swanson called. He is calling your cell." Strickland responded a few minutes later, "Had a 
great talk. Wanted to make sure we got his check [from SCRP] ... " 

Records show that on October 28, 2010, SCRP sent a $20,000 check to Strickland for 
Controller, who received SCRP's $20,000 check on October 30, 2010. 

The evidence shows that Strickland received a total of $65,000 in contributions from 
Templeton, Barth and Swanson through VCRP and SCRP. 

False Reporting 

In its campaign statement for March 18 through May 22, 2010, Strickland for Controller 
reported the following contributions: 

Date 
Received 

04/06/2010 
04/06/2010 

05/22/2010 

Amount 
Contributor Description Received this 

Period 
Templeton 2010P: $6,500 $6,500 
Templeton 2010G: $6,500 $6,500 
Associated Feed 

2010P: $6,500 $6,500 
(Swanson) 
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Cumulative to 
Date 

$13,000 
$13,000 

$6,500 



In its campaign statement for May 23 through June 30, 2010, Strickland for Controller 
reported the following contributions: 

Date 
Amount Cumulative to 

Received 
Contributor Description Received this Date 

Period 
06/30/2010 Barth 2010P: $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 
06/30/2010 VCRP 2010P: $45,000 $44,100 $45,000 
06/30/2010 VCRP 2010P: $45,000 $900 $45,000 

In its campaign statement for July 1 through September 30, 2010, Strickland for Controller 
reported the following contributions: 

Date 
Amount Cumulative to 

Received 
Contributor Description Received this Date 

Period 

09/09/2010 
Prospector, LLC 

201 OG: $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 
(Swanson) 

In its campaign statement for June 6 through June 30, 2010, VCRP reported the following 
contributions: 

Date 
Amount 

Cumulative to 
Received 

Contributor Description Received this 
Date Period 

06/1112010 Templeton None $32,400 $32,400 
06/28/2010 Barth None $15,000 $15,000 

And VCRP reported the following expenditures supporting candidates/committees: 

Schedule(s) 

E 

DandE 

Ill 

Date Recipient Description 

n/a Strickland for Controller 
Monetary 
Contribution 
Monetary 

06/30/2010 Strickland for Controller 
Contribution-
to support Tony 
Strickland 
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$44,100 

$900 



In its campaign statement for October 1 7 through November 20, 2010, SCRP reported the 
following contributions: 

Date 
Amount Cumulative to 

Received 
Contributor Description Received this 

Date 
Period 

10/26/2010 Templeton None $15,000 $15,000 

10/29/2010 
Prospector, LLC 

None $5,000 $5,000 
(Swanson) 

And SCRP reported the following expenditures supporting candidates/committees: 

Schedule(s) Date Recipient Description Amount 
Monetary 

DandE 10/28/2010 Strickland for Controller 
Contribution -

$20,000 
to support Tony 
Strickland 

In its campaign statement for October 17 through December 31, 2010, Strickland for 
Controller reported the following contributions: 

Date 
Amount 

Cumulative to 
Received 

Contributor Description Received this 
Date 

Period 

10/30/2010 SCRP 
20100: 

$20,000 $20,000 
$20,000 

None of the above campaign statements disclose that Templeton, Barth and Swanson were 
the true sources of the $65,000 in contributions from VCRP and SCRP and that VCRP and SCRP 
were the intermediaries for the contributions earmarked for Strickland for Controller, as required. 

VIOLATIONS 

Count 1: Prohibited Earmarked Over-The-Limit Contribution Made in the Name of Another 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, in June 2010, purposefully or negligently 
caused, or aided and abetted, Templeton to make an earmarked, over-the-limit contribution of 
$30,750 ($32,400 minus VCRP's 5% fee) to Strickland for Controller in the name of VCRP, 
violating Sections 84301, 85301 and 85704, and Regulation 18545, subdivision (a)(1). 

Count 2: Prohibited Earmarked Over-The-Limit Contribution Made in the Name of Another 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, in June 2010, purposefully or negligently 
caused, or aided and abetted, Barth to make an earmarked, over-the-limit contribution of $14,250 
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($15,000 minus VCRP's 5% fee) to Strickland for Controller in the name of VCRP, violating 
Sections 84301, 85301 and 85704, and Regulation 18545, subdivision (a)(1). 

Count 3: Prohibited Earmarked Over-The-Limit Contribution Made in the Name of Another 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, in October 2010, purposefully or negligently 
caused, or aided and abetted, Templeton to make an earmarked, over-the-limit contribution of 
$15,000 to Strickland for Controller in the name of SCRP, violating Sections 84301, 85301 and 
85704, and Regulation 18545, subdivision (a)(1). 

Count 4: Prohibited Earmarked Over-The-Limit Contribution Made in the Name of Another 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, in October 2010, purposefully or negligently 
caused, or aided and abetted, Swanson to make an earmarked, over-the-limit contribution of$5,000 
to Strickland for Controller in the name ofSCRP, violating Sections 84301, 85301 and 85704, and 
Regulation 18545, subdivision (a)(1 ). 

Count 5: Disclosure of False Information in Campaign Statements 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, on or about July 22, 2010, filed a false 
campaign statement for the reporting period of May 23 through June 30, 2010, concealing the 
violations described in Count 1 by falsely reporting that Strickland for Controller received a 
contribution from VCRP, when the contribution was made by Templeton, and VCRP was the 
intermediary for the transaction, violating Section 84211, subdivision (f). 

· Count 6: Disclosure of False Information in Campaign Statements 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, on or about July 22, 2010, filed a false 
campaign statement for the reporting period of May 23 through June 30, 2010, concealing the 
violations described in Count 2 by falsely reporting that Strickland for Controller received a 
contribution from VCRP, when the contribution was made by Barth, and VCRP was the 
intermediary for the transaction, violating Section 84211, subdivision (f). 

Count 7: Disclosure of False Information in Campaign Statements 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, on or about January 21, 2011, filed a false 
campaign statement for the reporting period of October 17 through December 31, 2010, concealing 
the violations described in Count 3 by falsely reporting that Strickland for Controller received a 
contribution from SCRP, when the contribution was made by Templeton, and SCRP was the 
intermediary for the transaction, violating Section 84211, subdivision (f). 

Count 8: Disclosure of False Information in Campaign Statements 

Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ray, on or about January 21, 2011, filed a false 
campaign statement for the reporting period of October 17 through December 31, 2010, concealing 
the violations described in Count 4 by falsely reporting that Strickland for Controller received a 
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contribution from SCRP, when the contribution was made by Swanson, and SCRP was the 
intermediary for the transaction, violating Section 84211, subdivision (f). 

CONCLUSION 

This matter consists of 8 counts of violating the Act, which carries a maximum 
administrative penalty of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) per count for a total of Forty Thousand 
Dollars ($40,000). 

In determining the appropriate penalty for a particular violation of the Act, the Commission 
considers the typical treatment of a violation in the overall statutory scheme of the Act, with an 
emphasis on serving the purposes and intent of the Act. Additionally, the Commission considers 
the facts and circumstances of the violation in context of the factors set forth in Regulation 
18361.5, subdivision (d): 1) the seriousness of the violations; 2) the presence or lack of intent to 
deceive the voting public; 3) whether the violation was deliberate, negligent, or inadvertent; 4) 
whether the Respondent demonstrated good faith in consulting with Commission staff; 5) whether 
there was a pattern of violations; and 6) whether, upon learning of the violation, the violator 
voluntarily provided amendments to provide full disclosure. 

The Commission also considers penalties in prior cases involving similar violations. 
Recent cases for similar violations include: 

Prohibited Earmarked Over-The-Limit Contributions Made in the Name of Another 

• James "Jim" Nielsen, Taxpayers for Jim Nielsen -Assembly 2012, Charles H Bell, 
Jr., Tehama County Republican Central Committee, Roger Marsh, Linda Alston, 
Robert A. "Bob" Williams, Friends of Bob Williams for Assembly 2012, and David 
Bauer, FPPC No. 12/377. The nine respondents included an incumbent State 
Assemblymember, a candidate for State Assembly, their candidate controlled 
committees, a Republican central committee ("Tehama GOP") and the committees' 
treasurers. The parties illegally moved money from Nielsen's committee to Williams' 
committee through the Tehama GOP. The evidence showed that Nielsen, Taxpayers 
for Nielsen and Bell made an earmarked, over-the-limit contribution totaling $4,320 to 
Friends of Williams in the name of Tehama GOP, violating Sections 84301, 85301 and 
85704, and Regulation 18545, subdivision (a)(1) (1 count). In August 2015, the 
Commission imposed a penalty of $4,500 for this count. 

• Bill Berryhill, Tom Berryhill, Bill Berryhill For Assembly - 2008, Berryhill For 
Assembly 2008, Stanislaus Republican Central Committee (State Acct.), and San 
Joaquin County Republican Central Committee/Calif Republican Victory Fund, FPPC 
No. 10/828 (Decision and Order). The six respondents included two brothers, their 
candidate controlled committees and two Republican central committees. Following a 
six-day administrative hearing, the Commission found that Tom Berryhill and his 
controlled committee made contributions in the name of the central committees to his 
brother's campaign, violating Section 84301 (2 counts). The Commission also found 
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that Tom Berryhill and his committee made over-the-limit contributions in separate 
counts. In April 2014, the Commission imposed a penalty of $5,000 per count. 

Disclosure of False Contributor Information in Campaign Statements 

• James HJim" Nielsen, Taxpayers for Jim Nielsen -Assembly 2012, Charles H Bell, 
Jr., Tehama County Republican Central Committee, Roger Marsh, Linda Alston, 
Robert A. HBob" Williams, Friends of Bob Williams for Assembly 2012, and David 
Bauer, FPPC No. 12/377. The nine respondents included an incumbent State 
Assemblymember, a candidate for State Assembly, their candidate controlled 
committees, a Republican central committee ("Tehama GOP") and the committees' 
treasurers. The parties illegally moved money from Nielsen's committee to Williams' 
committee through the Tehama GOP. The parties violated the Act as follows: 
Nielsen, Taxpayers for Nielsen and Bell falsely reported information regarding the 
$4,320 contribution from Taxpayers for Nielsen to Friends of Williams, violating 
Section 84211, subdivision (k) (1 count). In August 2015, the Commission imposed a 
penalty of $4,500 for this count. 
Tehama GOP, Marsh, and Alston, while acting as the intermediary of Taxpayers for 
Nielsen, falsely reported that Tehama GOP made a $4,320 contribution to Friends of 
Williams, instead of disclosing that Tehama GOP was the intermediary, violating 
Section 84211, subdivision (k) (1 count). In August 2015, the Commission imposed a 
penalty of $4,000 for this count. 

• Republican Central Committee of Los Angeles County, also known as Republican Party 
of Los Angeles County, FPPC No. 11/224 (Default Decision). Respondent, a political 
party central committee, filed a false campaign statement reporting that it made a 
$32,400 contribution to Committee to Elect Rabbi Shifren, when in fact RPLAC was 
merely the intermediary for contributions made by four members of the Novelly family 
to Committee to Elect Rabbi Shifren, in violation of Government Code Section 84211, 
subdivision (k) (1 count). In October 2014, the Commission imposed a penalty of 
$5,000 per count. 

• Bill Berryhill, et al., FPPC No. 10/828 (Decision and Order). The six respondents 
included two brothers, their candidate controlled committees and two Republican 
central committees, including SCRP. Following a six-day administrative hearing, the 
Commission found that Tom Berryhill and his controlled committee, disclosed false 
information in campaign statements to conceal the true source of earmarked 
contributions, in violation of Government Code section 84211, subdivision (f) 
(3 counts). In April 2014, the Commission imposed a penalty of $5,000 per count 
against Tom Berryhill and his controlled committee. 

Laundering campaign contributions is one of the most serious violations of the Act because 
such conduct circumvents campaign contribution limits, violates disclosure requirements, and 
deceives the voting public as to the true source of funds. Here, the parties' conduct deceived the 
voting public as to the true sources of$65,000 in contributions when they caused Templeton, Barth 
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and Swanson to make earmarked, over-the-limit contributions through VCRP and SCRP and filed 
inaccurate information in Strickland for Controller's campaign statements concealing the true 
sources of the contributions. 

The evidence shows that all parties understood that VCRP and SCRP would act as the 
undisclosed intermediaries for Templeton's, Barth's and Swanson's contributions to Strickland's 
campaign and that the $65,000 was to go to Strickland's controller campaign. Templeton, Barth 
and Swanson each made maximum contributions to Strickland's campaign. Yet Strickland, an 
experienced candidate and officeholder, continued to solicit funds from Templeton, Barth and 
Swanson and directed them to make contributions to VCRP and SCRP. 

Strickland made it clear that the over-the-limit funds were meant for his controller 
campaign. Strickland told the VCRP chairman that Strickland's campaign would pay Jubitz' 
commission for the Templeton and Barth contributions so more funds would be received by his 
campaign toward his $2 million goal. After notification that Templeton and Barth had sent checks 
to VCRP, Strickland directed the VCRP chairman to "write a 45k check" to Strickland's campaign, 
and within two days, VCRP sent $45,000 to Strickland. Strickland caused Templeton, Barth and 
Swanson to give $65,000 in contributions to his campaign illegally through VCRP and SCRP. 

The deliberate conduct in this matter resulted in significant non-disclosure, depriving the 
public of information regarding the campaign activity and the true sources of Strickland's 
campaign funds. The conduct in this case is more egregious than the conduct in the comparable 
cases because of the active involvement of Strickland and his campaign in coordinating and 
concealing the true sources of the funds. 

Two of the parties have prior enforcement history. Strickland was prosecuted in 
April 2010 by the Commission for failing to include proper sender identification for a mass 
mailing. Ray was prosecuted in April 201 0 by the Commission for failing to include major donor 
information in the committee name. And the Commission's Enforcement Division issued three 
prior warning letters against Ray related to her duties as treasurer for three separate committees. 

Strickland, W angsapom and Ray did not cooperate with the investigation of this matter. 
Strickland, W angsapom and Ray were subpoenaed for interviews with the Enforcement Division 
on November 19,2014. None appeared, and their attorney failed to respond to telephone and email 
inquiries regarding the interviews. 

On May 17, 2016, Ray sent a written statement to the Enforcement Division regarding her 
role as treasurer of the Committee. Ray contends that, for all campaigns for which she serves as 
treasurer, she verifies that contributions and expenditures "conform on their face" with the Act. 
She also contends that when political party committees send checks for her clients, she assumes 
political party committees know campaign laws. And Ray contends that she used "reasonable 
diligence" in preparing the Committee's campaign statements. Even so, as treasurer of the 
Committee, the Act holds Ray strictly liable concerning the receipt and expenditure of funds and 
the reporting of such funds. 

Ill 
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PROPOSED PENALTY 

The factors listed in Regulation 18361.5, prior similar cases, and other relevant facts, 
justify a total penalty of $40,000: 

Count Description 
Penalty 

per count 
Strickland, Strickland for Controller, and Ra_y 

1-4 

5-8 

Accepting Prohibited Earmarked Over-the-Limit $5,000 
Contributions which were Made in Legal Name of 
Another 
Disclosure of False Information in Campaign Statements $5,000 

Total Agreed Upon Penalty 

* * * * * 
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Total 

$20,000 

$20,000 
$40,000 
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1 GALENA WEST 
Chief of Enforcement 

2 ANGELA J. BRERETON 
Senior Commission Counsel 

3 FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 
428 J Street, Suite 620 

4 Sacramento, CA 95814 
Telephone: (916) 322-5660 

5 Facsimile: (916) 322-1932 

6 Attorneys for Complainant 
Enforcement Division of the Fair Political Practices Commission 
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BEFORE THE FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of 

STANISLAUS REPUBLICAN 
CENTRAL COMMITTEE (State Acct.), 
and GARY McKINSEY, 

) FPPC No. 16/178 
) 
) 
) 
) STIPULATION, DECISION and ORDER 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

------------~R~e~s~po~n~d~e~n~ts~·--_____________ ) 

17 STIPULATION 

18 Complainant, the Enforcement Division of the Fair Political Practices Commission, and 

19 Respondents Stanislaus Republican Central Committee (State Acct.) and Gary McKinsey, hereby agree 

20 that this Stipulation will be submitted for consideration by the Fair Political Practices Commission at its 

21 next regularly scheduled meeting. 

22 The parties agree to enter into this Stipulation to resolve all factual and legal issues raised by 

23 this matter and to reach a final disposition without the necessity of holding an additional administrative 

24 hearing to determine the liability of SCRP and McKinsey. 

25 SCRP and McKinsey understand, and hereby knowingly and voluntarily waive, any and all 

26 procedural rights set forth in Government Code Sections 83115.5, 11503 and 11523, and in California 

27 Code of Regulations, title 2, Sections 18361.1 through 18361.9. This includes, but is not limited to the 

28 right to personally appear at any administrative hearing held in this matter, to be represented by an 
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1 attorney at SCRP's and McKinsey's own expense, to confront and cross-examine all witnesses 

2 testifying at the hearing, to subpoena witnesses to testify at the hearing, to have an impartial 

3 administrative law judge preside over the hearing as a hearing officer, and to have the matter judicially 

4 reviewed. 

5 It is further stipulated and agreed that SCRP and McKinsey violated the Political Reform Act as 

6 described in Exhibit 1: SCRP and McKinsey, while acting as the intermediary for two persons, failed to 

7 disclose both the intermediary and the original contributor information for $20,000 in contributions 

8 from the persons, violating Government Code Section 84302 (1 count); filed an erroneous campaign 

9 statement for the reporting period of October 17 through November 20, 2010, which failed to disclose 

10 the violations described in Count 1 by erroneously reporting that SCRP made $20,000 in contributions 

11 to Strickland for Controller, when it was not the true source of the contributions and was the 

12 intermediary for the transactions, violating Government Code Section 84211, subdivision (k) (1 count). 

13 Exhibit 1 is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein. Exhibit 1 is a 

14 true and accurate summary of the facts in this matter. 

15 SCRP and McKinsey agree to the issuance of the Decision and Order, which is attached hereto. 

16 SCRP and McKinsey also agree to the Commission imposing an administrative penalty in the total 

17 amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000). A cashier's check from SCRP and McKinsey in said 

18 amount, made payable to the "General Fund of the State of California," is submitted with this 

19 Stipulation as full payment of the administrative penalty, and shall be held by the State of California 

20 until the Commission issues its Decision and Order regarding this matter. The parties agree that in the 

21 event the Commission refuses to accept this Stipulation, it shall become null and void, and within 

22 fifteen (15) business days after the Commission meeting at which the Stipulation is rejected, all 

23 payments tendered by SCRP and McKinsey in connection with this Stipulation shall be reimbursed to 

24 SCRP and McKinsey. SCRP and McKinsey further stipulate and agree that in the event the 

25 Commission rejects the Stipulation, and a full evidentiary hearing before the Commission becomes 

26 . necessary, neither any member of the Commission, nor the Executive Director, shall be disqualified 

27 because of prior consideration of this Stipulation. 

28 
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... . 

1 

2 Dated: 

3 

4 

Galena t, Chief, on Behalf of the Enforcement Division 
Fair Political Practices Commission 

5 Dated: , 3. ( ~ ~ { '0 . 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Dated: J J // 'Jlt/(. 
Tl 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The foregoing Stipulation of the parties "In the Matter of Stanislaus Republican Central 

Committee (State Acct.), and Gary McKinsey," FPPC Case No. 16/178, including all attached exhibits, 

is hereby accepted as the final decision and order of the Fair Political Practices Commission, effective 

upon execution below by the Chair. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Dated: 3 / L/ h 4o 
I I 
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EXHffiiTl 

INTRODUCTION 

Respondent Stanislaus Republican Central Committee (State Acct.), also known as 
Stanislaus County Republican Party ("SCRP"), was a political party committee located tn 
Modesto, CA. Respondent Gary McKinsey was the treasurer for SCRP. 

Anthony A. "Tony" Strickland served in the California Legislature for ten years: as a State 
Senator, 19th District, from 2008 through 2012, and as a State Assemblymember, 37th District, 
from 1998 through 2004. Strickland was an unsuccessful candidate for California State 
Controller in the November 2, 2010 general election, and he unsuccessfully ran for Congress in 
2012 and 2014. Strickland for Controller 2010, was Strickland's candidate controlled committee. 
Lysa Ray was the treasurer for Strickland for Controller. Strickland, Strickland for Controller 
and Ray are named respondents in the companion case, FPPC Case No. 11/073. 

Ventura County Republican Party ("VCRP") was a political party committee located in 
Camarillo, CA. Arkady Milgram was the treasurer for VCRP. VCRP and Milgram are named 
respondents in the companion case, FPPC Case No. 161100. 

The Political Reform Act (the "Act") 1 requires committees to accurately disclose 
contributions and expenditures. The Act prohibits contributions made in the name of another, 
prohibits earmarking contributions unless the intermediary and original contributor information 
is disclosed, and imposes campaign contribution limits regarding the making and receiving of 
certain contributions. In 2010, an individual wishing to contribute to a candidate for California 
State Controller could not contribute more than $6,500 per election. However, at that time, there 
was no limit on contributions from a political party county central committee to that same 
candidate. 

In 2010, SCRP made a $20,000 contribution to Strickland for Controller. However SCRP 
was not the true source of the contribution, and the true sources of the contribution were 
concealed. SCRP and McKinsey violated the Act by failing to disclose both the intermediary and 
the original contributor information for the contributions and filing erroneous campaign 
statements which failed to disclose that activity. 

SUMMARY OF THE LAW 

All legal references and discussions of law pertain to the Act's provisions as they existed 
in 2010. 

Ill 

1 The Political Reform Act is contained in Government Code §§ 81000 through 91014, and all statutory 
references are to this code. The regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission are contained in §§ 18110 
through 18997 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, and all regulatory references are to this source. 
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Need for Liberal Construction and Vigorous Enforcement of the Political Reform Act 

When enacting the Political Reform Act, the people of the state of California found and 
declared that previous laws regulating political practices suffered from inadequate enforcement 
by state and local authorities. 2 To that end, the Act must be liberally construed to achieve its 
purposes.3 

There are many purposes of the Act. One purpose is to ensure that receipts and 
expenditures in election campaigns are fully and truthfully disclosed so that voters are fully 
informed and improper practices are inhibited. 4 Another is to provide adequate enforcement 
mechanisms so that the Act will be "vigorously enforced."5 

Definition of Political Party Committee 

A "political party committee" includes the county central committee of an organization 
that meets the requirements for recognition as a political party pursuant to Section 5100 of the 
Elections Code. 6 

Duty to Disclose Intermediary 

The Act prohibits any person from making a contribution while acting as the 
intermediary of another, without disclosing to the recipient of the contribution both the 
intermediary's own full name, street address, occupation, and employer, and the original 
contributor's full name, street address, occupation, and employer.7 The Act also states that a 
person is an intermediary for a contribution if the recipient of the contribution "would consider 
the person to be the contributor without the disclosure of the identity of the true source of the 
contribution. "8 

Campaign Contribution Limits 

The Act imposes campaign contribution limits with respect to the making and receiving 
of certain contributions. These limits are adjusted periodically, and different limits apply 
depending upon who is contributing and who is receiving. 9 

In 2010, an individual wishing to contribute to a candidate for California State Controller 
could not contribute more than $6,500 per election. 10 However, at that time, there was no limit 
on contributions from a political party committee (such as a county central committee) to that 

2 § 81001, subd. (h). 
3 § 81003. 
4 § 81002, subd. (a). 
5 § 81002, subd. (f). 
6 § 85205. 
7 § 84302. 
8 Reg. 18432.5, subd. (a). 
9 §§ 83124, 85301 and 85303, and Reg. 18545. 
10 § 85301, subd. (b); Reg. 18545, subd. (a)(2). 
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same candidate. In 2010, there was a calendar year limit of $32,400 with respect to how much an 
individual could contribute to a political party committee for the purpose of making 
contributions to candidates for State Controller. 11 Individuals could exceed this amount so long 
as the excess was not used by the committee to support/oppose candidates for elective state 
office. 

Aggregation of Campaign Contributions by Affiliated Entities 

For purposes of the Act's contribution limits, contributions of an entity whose 
contributions are directed and controlled by any individual must be aggregated with 
contributions made by that individual and any other entity whose contributions are directed and 
controlled by the same individual. 12 An entity is any person, other than an individual. 13 A person 
is as an individual, proprietorship, firm, partnership, joint venture, syndicate, business trust, 
company, corporation, limited liability company, association, committee, and any other 
organization or group of persons acting in concert. 14 

Duty to Disclose Accurate Expenditure Information on Campaign Statements 

The Act requires committees to report on campaign statements the following information 
about its expenditures, including those expenditures which are contributions to candidates: 
(1) the payee's full name; (2) his or her street address; (3) the amount of each expenditure; (4) a 
brief description of the consideration for which each expenditure was made; and (5) in the case 
of an expenditure which is a contribution to a candidate, elected officer, or committee, the date 
of the contribution, the cumulative amount of contributions made to that recipient, the full name 
of the recipient, and the office and district/jurisdiction for which he or she seeks nomination or 
election. 15 

Liability for Violations 

Any person who violates any provision of the Act, who purposely or negligently causes 
any other person to violate any provision of the Act, or who aids and abets any other person in 
the violation of any provision of the Act, is liable for administrative penalties up to $5,000 per 
violation. 16 This only applies to persons who have filing or reporting obligations under the Act, 
or who are compensated for services involving the planning, organizing or directing of any 
activity regulated or required by the Act. 17 

Ill 

11 § 85303, subd. (b); Reg. 18545, subd. (a)(8). 
12 § 85311, subd. (b). 
13 § 85311, subd. (a)(1). 
14 § 82047. 
15 § 84211, subd. (k). 
16 §§ 83116, and 83116.5. 
17 § 83116.5. 

3 
EXHIBIT 1 IN SUPPORT OF STIPULATION, DECISION AND ORDER 

FPPC NO. 16/178 



Treasurer Liability 

Every committee must have a treasurer. 18 It is the duty of a committee's treasurer to 
ensure that the committee complies with all of the requirements of the Act concerning the receipt 
and expenditure of funds and the reporting of such funds. 19 A committee's treasurer may be held 
jointly and severally liable with the committee for any reporting violations. 20 

Joint and Several Liability 

If two or more parties are responsible for a violation of the Act, they are jointly and 
severally liable.21 

SUMMARY OF THE FACTS 

Laundered Campaign Contributions 

Records show that in 2010, Strickland for Controller hired Pluvious Group, a political 
fundraising firm located in Los Angeles, CA. Matthew Jubitz, owner of Pluvious Group, told 
Enforcement Division staff that he worked closely with Strickland, and reported fundraising 
activity directly to Strickland. Jubitz testified that Pluvious Group maintained a detailed and 
extensive contributor contact list, which Pluvious Group used when fundraising for Strickland's 
campaign. Pluvious Group promoted Strickland's campaign to contributors and communities, 
created fundraising materials, planned, organized and hosted fundraisers, and collected 
contributions for Strickland for Controller related to these efforts. Pluvious Group received a 
15% commission for all contributions it secured for Strickland's campaign. 

Records show that because Strickland agreed to be part of the same ticket as Meg 
Whitman, the 2010 Republican candidate for California governor, Strickland for Controller set a 
fundraising goal of $2 million. 

William M. Templeton, a resident of Dallas, TX, who had significant business interests in 
oil and gas production and real estate in Ventura County, CA, told Enforcement Division staff 
that in March 2010, Strickland telephoned him. Templeton stated that during the telephone 
conversation, he agreed to give $13,000 to Strickland's campaign for State Controller, the 
maximum allowed under the Act for both the primary and general elections. On March 29, 2010, 
Templeton sent an email to Jubitz stating that he was sending a $13,000 check. Templeton 
signed a check dated March 29, 2010, for $13,000 to Strickland's Controller campaign. Records 
show that Strickland for Controller received Templeton's maximum contribution on 
April6, 2010. 

18 § 84100. 
19 §§ 81004, 84100, 84104 and 84213, and Reg. 18427. 
20 §§ 83116.5 and 91006. 
21 § 91006. 
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According to his testimony, Templeton wanted to do more to support pro-business 
candidates in Ventura County without getting personally involved in local races. An email thread 
between Templeton and Jubitz dated June 4, 2010, indicates that Strickland and Templeton had 
discussed Templeton making contributions to VCRP and to Meg Whitman, and Strickland was to 
ask Jubitz where Templeton should send his checks. Jubitz instructed Templeton to send both 
checks to him at Pluvious Group. On June 7, 2010, Templeton wrote a check to VCRP for 
$32,400, the maximum allowed for candidate support to a political party committee. Templeton 
testified that he had no contact with VCRP and sent the check to Jubitz. Jubitz testified that he 
delivered the check to VCRP. 

Records show that VCRP received Templeton's check on June 11, 2010, three days after 
the primary election. The evidence shows that on June 28 and 30, 2010, at Strickland's direction, 
VCRP contributed $30,750 of Templeton's contribution to Strickland's campaign. 

Despite Templeton having made the maximum contribution to Strickland and 
contributing another $30,750 through VCRP, Jubitz sent a campaign letter dated August 6, 2010, 
to Templeton, signed by Strickland, inviting Templeton to attend a fundraising event in 
Thousand Oaks on September 23, 2010, for Strickland's campaign. Under the subject line 
"Strickland Event," Templeton emailed Jubitz on August 13, 2010, asking, "Can I contribute any 
more ??" Jubitz forwarded the email to Strickland, saying, "I'm going to ask for [California 
Republican Party], unless yo~ say otherwise." Strickland replied, "Vcgop," and later followed 
up: 

We should get the 30k to vcgop. That is what the [sic] can get that vcgop can 
give directly to candidates. If he has a wife we should ask for 60k 

In August 2010, Templeton planned to travel to Sacramento on business. Templeton 
emailed Wangsapom on August 22, 2010, requesting to meet with Strickland while he was in 
Sacramento. 

Soon after the meeting, on September 8, 2010, Jubitz sent an email to Templeton 
confirming his "generous pledge of $32,400" to SCRP. Templeton corrected him, replying, "I 
am still looking at this. I will do something to Stanislaus, but it won't be the $32,400." Jubitz 
testified that Pluvious Group did not have a fundraising contract with SCRP. 

On October 5, 2010, Jubitz sent an email to Templeton inviting him to an "intimate" 
dinner gathering hosted by Strickland, which was eventually held on October 12, 2010 at Sly's, a 
popular restaurant in Carpinteria, CA. Jubitz testified that between 10 and 13 people attended, 
including Strickland, his wife, Audra, Jubitz, and Templeton. According to Jubitz' and 
Templeton's testimony, everyone sat at one large table, and conversation topics included the 
2010 Controller's race and the need for more contributions. 

One week later, records show that Templeton wrote a check to SCRP for $15,000. 
Templeton testified that he had no contact with SCRP and sent the contribution check to Jubitz. 
Jubitz delivered the check to SCRP, who received Templeton's contribution on 
October 26, 2010. 
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Similarly, records show that Matthew Swanson, president of Associated Feed & Supply 
Co. and other Swanson Family companies in Turlock, CA, made a maximum contribution to 
Strickland for Controller through his business and a large contribution to SCRP. In May 2010, 
Swanson, through Associated Feed, made the maximum contribution to Strickland for Controller 
for the primary election, $6,500. In September 2010, Swanson, through his investment company, 
Prospector, LLC, made the maximum contribution to Strickland for Controller for the general 
election, $6,500. Because Swanson directed and controlled the contributions of his two 
companies, the contributions were attributed to Swanson. So Swanson gave the maximum 
contributions to Strickland for Controller. 

Records show that on October 25, 2010, Maria Stavrakas of Pluvious Group sent an 
email to Deanna Lascano, executive assistant to Swanson, as follows: 

Hi Dee Anna [sic], 

The check should be made payable to 

Stanislaus County Republican Party 

and overnight to our office: 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 

Did Matt [Swanson] say how much he decided to contribute? 

I will also send you Major Donor forms in a separate email. 

Thanks so much for your help. 

Lascano responded on October 26, 2010: "He asked me to fill out a check for $5,000. Thanks for 
the forms and address. I will have Ron cut the check today if possible, otherwise it will go out 
tomorrow." Stavrakas forwarded the email thread to Jubitz the same day. Records show that on 
October 26, 2010, Swanson, again through Prospector, sent a $5,000 check to SCRP. 

Records also show that on October 28, 2010, Stavrakas sent an email to Strickland, 
stating, "Matt Swanson called. He is calling your cell." Strickland responded a few minutes later, 
"Had a great talk. Wanted to make sure we got his check [from SCRP] ... " 

Records show that on October 28, 2010, SCRP sent a $20,000 check to Strickland for 
Controller, who received SCRP's $20,000 check on October 30, 2010. 

Ill 

6 

EXHIBIT 1 IN SUPPORT OF STIPULATION, DECISION AND ORDER 
FPPC NO. 16/178 



Campaign Statements 

In its campaign statement for March 18 through May 22, 2010, Strickland for Controller 
reported the following contributions: 

Date 
Amount 

Cumulative to 
Received 

Contributor Description Received this 
Da~te 

Period 
04/06/2010 Templeton 2010P: $6,500 $6,500 $13,000 
04/06/2010 Templeton 201 OG: $6,500 $6,500 $13,000 

05/22/2010 
Associated Feed 

2010P: $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 
(Swanson) 

In its campaign statement for July 1 through September 30, 2010, Strickland for 
Controller reported the following contributions: 

Date Amount 
Cumulative to 

Received 
Contributor Description Received this 

Date 
Period 

09/09/2010 
Prospector, LLC 

201 OG: $6,500 $6,500 $6,500 
(Swanson) 

In its campaign statement for October 17 through November 20, 2010, SCRP reported the 
following contributions: 

Date 
Amount 

Cumulative to 
Received 

Contributor Description Received this 
Date 

Period 
10/26/2010 Templeton None $15,000 $15,000 

10/29/2010 
Prospector, LLC 

None $5,000 $5,000 
(Swanson) 

And SCRP reported the following expenditures supporting candidates/committees: 

Schedule(s) 

DandE 

Ill 

Date Recipient Description 
Monetary 

10/28/2010 Strickland for Controller 
Contribution -
to support Tony 
Strickland 
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$20,000 



In its campaign statement for October 17 through December 31, 2010, Strickland for 
Controller reported the following contributions: 

Date 
Amount 

Cumulative to 
Received 

Contributor Description Received this 
Date 

Period 
10/30/2010 SCRP 2010G: $20,000 $20,000 $20,000 

None of the above campaign statements disclose that Templeton and Swanson were the 
true sources of the $20,000 contribution from SCRP and that SCRP was the intermediary for the 
contributions earmarked for .Strickland for Controller, as required. 

VIOLATIONS 

Count 1: Failure to Disclose Intermediary and Original Contributor Information 

SCRP and McKinsey, in October 2010, while acting as the intermediary for Templeton 
and Swanson, failed to disclose both the intermediary and the original contributor information 
for a $15,000 contribution from Templeton to Strickland for Controller and for a $5,000 
contribution from Swanson to Strickland for Controller, violating Government Code Section 
84302. 

Count 2: Disclosure of Erroneous Information in Campaign Statements 

SCRP and McKinsey, on or about December 1, 2010, filed an erroneous campaign 
statement for the reporting period of October 17 through November 20, 2010, which failed to 
disclose the violations described in Count 1 by erroneously reporting that SCRP made $20,000 in 
contributions to Strickland· for Controller, when it was not the true source of the contributions 
and was the intermediary for the transactions, violating Section 84211, subdivision (k). 

CONCLUSION 

This matter consists of 2 counts of violating the Act, which carries a maximum 
administrative penalty of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) per count for a total of Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($1 0,000). 

In determining the appropriate penalty for a particular violation of the Act, the 
Commission considers the typical treatment of a violation in the overall statutory scheme of the 
Act, with an emphasis on serving the purposes and intent of the Act. Additionally, the 
Commission considers the facts and circumstances of the violation in context of the factors set 
forth in Regulation 18361.5, subdivision (d): 1) the seriousness of the violations; 2) the presence 
or lack of intent to deceive the voting public; 3) whether the violation was deliberate, negligent, 
or inadvertent; 4) whether the Respondent demonstrated good faith in consulting with 
Commission staff; 5) whether there was a pattern of violations; and 6) whether, upon learning of 
the violation, the violator voluntarily provided amendments to provide full disclosure. 
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The Commission also considers penalties in prior cases involving similar violations. 
Recent cases for similar violations include: 

Failure to Disclose Intermediary and Original Contributor Information 

• James uJim" Nielsen, Taxpayers for Jim Nielsen -Assembly 2012, Charles H Bell, 
Jr., Tehama County Republican Central Committee, Roger Marsh, Linda Alston, 
Robert A. uBob" Williams, Friends of Bob Williams for Assembly 2012, and David 
Bauer, FPPC No. 12/377. The nine respondents included an incumbent State 
Assemblymember, a candidate for State Assembly, their candidate controlled 
committees, a Republican central committee ("Tehama GOP") and the committees' 
treasurers. The parties impermissibly moved money from Nielsen's committee to 
Williams' committee through the Tehama GOP. The evidence showed that Tehama 
GOP, and Marsh, while acting as the intermediary of Taxpayers for Nielsen, failed to 
disclose both the intermediary and the original contributor information for the $4,320 
contribution from Taxpayers for Nielsen to Friends of Williams, violating Section 
84302 (1 count). In August 2015, the Commission imposed a penalty of $4,000 for 
this count. 

• Republican Central Committee of Los Angeles County, also known as Republican 
Party of Los Angeles County, FPPC No. 11/224 (Default Decision). Respondent, a 
political party central committee, served as the intermediary for contributions from 
four members of the Novelly family, for contributions totaling $32,400, to Committee 
to Elect Rabbi Shifren, in violation of Government Code Section 84302 (2 counts). In 
October 2014, the Commission imposed a penalty of$5,000 per count. 

Disclosure of Erroneous Contributor Information in Campaign Statements 

• James uJim" Nielsen, Taxpayers for Jim Nielsen -Assembly 2012, Charles H Bell, 
Jr., Tehama County Republican Central Committee, Roger Marsh, Linda Alston, 
Robert A. uBob" Williams, Friends of Bob Williams for Assembly 2012, and David 
Bauer, FPPC No. 12/377. The nine respondents included an incumbent State 
Assemblymember, a candidate for State Assembly, their candidate controlled 
committees, a Republican central committee ("Tehama GOP") and the committees' 
treasurers. The parties impermissibly moved money from Nielsen's committee to 
Williams' committee through the Tehama GOP. The evidence showed that Tehama 
GOP, Marsh, and Alston, while acting as the intermediary of Taxpayers for Nielsen, 
erroneously reported that Tehama GOP made a $4,320 contribution to Friends of 
Williams, instead of disclosing that Tehama GOP was the intermediary, violating 
Section 84211, subdivision (k) (1 count). In August 2015, the Commission imposed a 
penalty of $4,000 for this count. 

• Republican Central Committee of Los Angeles County, also known as Republican 
Party of Los Angeles County, FPPC No. 111224 (Default Decision). Respondent, a 
political party central committee, filed a false campaign statement reporting that it 
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made a $32,400 contribution to Committee to Elect Rabbi Shifren, when in fact 
RPLAC was merely the intermediary for contributions made by four members of the 
Novelly family to Committee to Elect Rabbi Shifren, in violation of Government 
Code Section 84211, subdivision (k) (1 count). In October 2014, the Commission 
imposed a penalty of$5,000 per count. 

• Bill Berryhill, et a!., FPPC No. 10/828 (Decision and Order). The six respondents 
included two brothers, their candidate controlled committees and two Republican 
central committees, including SCRP. Following a six-day administrative hearing, the 
Commission found that Tom Berryhill and his controlled committee, disclosed false 
information in campaign statements to conceal the true source of earmarked 
contributions, in violation of Government Code section 84211, subdivision (f) 
(3 counts). In April 2014, the Commission imposed a penalty of $5,000 per count 
against Tom Berryhill and his controlled committee. 

Failing to disclose intermediary and original contributor information is one of the most 
serious violations of the Act because such conduct circumvents campaign contribution limits, 
violates disclosure requirements, and deceives the voting public as to the true source of funds. 
Here, SCRP's and McKinsey's conduct deceived the voting public as to the true sources of the 
$20,000 contribution when they failed to disclose intermediary and original contributor 
information and filed inaccurate information in SCRP's campaign statement concealing the true 
sources of the contribution. 

The evidence shows that all parties understood that SCRP would act as the undisclosed 
intermediary for Templeton's and Swanson's contributions to Strickland's campaign and that the 
$20,000 was to go to Strickland's controller campaign. Templeton and Swanson each made 
maximum contributions to Strickland's campaign. Yet Strickland, an experienced candidate and 
officeholder, continued to solicit funds from Templeton and Swanson and directed them to make 
contributions to SCRP. Strickland made it clear that the over-the-limit funds were meant for his 
controller campaign. 

The conduct in this matter resulted in significant non-disclosure, depriving the public of 
information regarding the campaign activity and the true sources of Strickland's campaign funds. 
The conduct in this case is more egregious than the conduct in the comparable cases because of 
the active involvement of Strickland and his campaign in coordinating and concealing the true 
sources of the funds. 

Additionally, SCRP has concurrent enforcement history for similar conduct. SCRP was 
prosecuted by the Commission for its role in the laundered campaign contributions in Bill 
Berryhill, Tom Berryhill, Bill Berryhill For Assembly - 2008, Berryhill For Assembly 2008, 
Stanislaus Republican Central Committee (State Acct.), and San Joaquin County Republican 
Central Committee/Calif. Republican Victory Fund, FPPC No. 10/828. The Enforcement 
Division investigation in the Berryhill case, which focused on 2008 conduct, began several 
months before the conduct in this case occurred. 

SCRP and McKinsey cooperated with the investigation of this case. 
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PROPOSED PENALTY 

The factors listed in Regulation 18361.5, prior similar cases, and other relevant facts, 
justify a total penalty of $10,000: 

Count 
1 
2 

Description 
Failure to Disclose Intermediary and Original Contributor Information 
Disclosure of Erroneous Information in Campaign Statements 

Total Agreed Upon Penalty 

* * * * * 

II 
EXHIBIT I IN SUPPORT OF STIPULATION, DECISION AND ORDER 

FPPC NO. I6/I78 

Total 
$5,000 
$5,000 

$10,000 
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BEFORE THE 
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 
 
 

In the Matter of the First Amended 
Accusation Against: 
 
VENTURA COUNTY REPUBLICAN 
PARTY and ARKADY MILGRAM 
 

Respondent(s). 
 

 
Case No.  16/100 
 
OAH No.  2018110945 
 
NOTICE OF HEARING DATES AND OF 
PREHEARING CONFERENCE AND 
MANDATORY SETTLEMENT 
CONFERENCE DATE AND TIME 
 

 
 

 1.  HEARING.  The hearing in this case will begin on May 20, 2019, and proceed on 
a day-to-day basis (excluding weekends and state holidays), until completed, through May 
29, 2019, starting at 9:00 a.m. each day, the Office of Administrative Hearings, 320 West 
Fourth Street, 6th Floor, Suite 630, in Los Angeles, California.  If they have not already done 
so, the parties shall immediately notify all potential witnesses of the hearing dates in this case 
in order to assure that the witnesses will be available to appear on the current hearing dates.  
A witness will not be regarded as unavailable for purposes of showing “good cause” to 
continue the hearing pursuant to Government Code section 11524, if a party has failed to 
notify the witness of the hearing dates promptly. 

 
2.  PRE-HEARING CONFERENCE AND MANDATORY SETTLEMENT 

CONFERENCE.  A pre-hearing conference and mandatory settlement conference 
(PHC/MSC) will be held on April 5, 2019, at 1:30 p.m., before an Administrative Law 
Judge at the Office of Administrative Hearings, 320 West Fourth Street, 6th Floor, Suite 630, 
in Los Angeles, California.  Pre-hearing conference statements prepared in accordance with 
Government Code section 11511.5 and California Code of Regulations, title 1, section 1026, 
must be filed with the Office of Administrative Hearings and served on all other parties no 
later than three business days before the scheduled prehearing conference.   

 
3.  Should the parties wish to participate in an early settlement conference, they shall 

request one in a joint letter, with at least three mutually-acceptable proposed dates and times.  
Settlement conferences are scheduled on Mondays and Fridays, at 9:30 a.m. or 1:30 p.m.  
Any request for an early settlement conference should be made well in advance of any 
proposed dates to ensure the availability of those dates. 
 

4.  Agency counsel, respondent and respondent’s attorney/representatives shall appear 
in person at all settlement conferences, unless excused by an administrative law judge of the 



 2 

Office of Administrative Hearings.  An agency representative who is familiar with the case, 
and has authority to approve settlement terms subject to approval by the agency head, must 
be available to participate in each settlement conference by telephone, unless excused by an 
administrative law judge of the Office of Administrative Hearings. 

 
5.  Counsel for complainant shall send notice of the time, date and place of the 

hearing and the PHC/MSC to all other parties within 20 days of the date of this Order and 
file a copy of the notice with the calendar clerk at the Office of Administrative Hearings, in 
Los Angeles, California. 
 

6.  All documents filed in this matter with OAH’s Los Angeles office shall be filed 
electronically, as directed at https://www. applications.dgs.ca.gov/OAH/OAHSFTWeb.  
When filing electronically, it is not necessary to file a hard copy of the same document by 
any other means, such as personal delivery or mail.  The parties are directed to OAH’s 
Secure E-File Information for further information about filing documents electronically at: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/oah/Home/SecureFileTransfer.aspx. 
 
 7.  An administrative law judge may impose sanctions and/or certify the record for 
contempt, if a party fails to comply with the requirements of any order or any other law 
applicable to this proceeding.  (See Gov. Code §§ 11455.10-11455.30.) 
 

9.  Proceedings before the Office of Administrative Hearings may be governed by the 
Administrative Procedure Act (Gov. Code, §§ 11370-11529) and regulations relating to 
general APA hearing procedures (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 1, §§ 1000-1050).  Parties to 
proceedings before the Office of Administrative Hearings should refer to these statutes and 
regulations for applicable procedures and requirements. 

 
 
DATED:  November 29, 2018  Sylvia Padilla, Staff Services Analyst 
      Office of Administrative Hearings 
 



DECLARATION OF SERVICE 
 
Case Name: Ventura County Republican Party 
 

OAH No.:  2018110945 
 

I, Sylvia Padilla, declare as follows: I am over 18 years of age and am not a party to this action.  I 
am employed by the Office of Administrative Hearings.  My business address is 320 West Fourth 
Street, Suite 630, Los Angeles, CA  90013.  On November 29, 2018, I served a copy of the 
following document(s) in the action entitled above:  
 

NOTICE OF HEARING DATES AND OF PREHEARING CONFERENCE AND 
MANDATORY SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE DATE AND TIME 

 
to each of the person(s) named below at the addresses listed after each name by the following 
method(s): 
 
Angela J. Brereton, Senior Commission Counsel 
Fair Political Practices Commission 
1102 Q Street, Suite 3000 
Sacramento, CA  95811 
VIA Email (E-Service) abrereton@fppc.ca.gov 
 
Charles H. Bell, Jr., Attorney at Law 
455 Capitol Mall, Suite 600 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
VIA Email (E-Service) cbell@bmhlaw.com 

 

 
 United States Mail. I enclosed the document(s) in a sealed envelope or package addressed to 

the person(s) at the address(es) listed above, and placed the envelope or package for collection and 
mailing, in accordance with the Office of Administrative Hearings’ ordinary business practices, in 
Los Angeles, California.  I am readily familiar with the Office of Administrative Hearings' 
practice for collecting and processing documents for mailing.  Correspondences are deposited in 
the ordinary course of business with the United States Postal Service in a sealed envelope or 
package with postage fully prepaid. [  by certified mail]. 
 

 Electronic Transmission.  Based on a court order or the agreement of the parties to accept 
service by electronic transmission, the document(s) were distributed to the person(s) by secure 
electronic transmission (OAH Secure e-File) with a notification and document link sent to the 
email address(es) listed above. 
 
I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is 
true and correct.  This declaration was executed at Los Angeles, California on November 29, 
2018. 
   

//S1// 
 
Sylvia Padilla, Declarant 
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WITHDRAWAL OF NOTICE OF DEFENSE  
 

Charles H. Bell, Jr. (SBN 060553)  
cbell@bmhlaw.com 
BELL, McANDREWS & HILTACHK, LLP 
455 Capitol Mall, Suite 600 
Sacramento, California 95814 
Telephone: (916) 442-7757 
Facsimile: (916) 442-7759 
EM:  cbell@bmhlaw.com 

Attorney for Respondents VENTURA COUNTY  
REPUBLICAN PARTY and ARKADY MILGRAM 
 
 

BEFORE THE FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 
 

In the Matter of:       

 

VENTURA COUNTY REPUBLICAN PARTY 

and ARKADY MILGRAM, 

 

Respondents 
 
 

 

FPPC Nos. 16/100 
OAH No. 
 
 
 
WITHDRAWAL OF NOTICE OF DEFENSE 
 
 
 
 

 
Respondents, VENTURA COUNTY REPUBLICAN PARTY and ARKADY MILGRAM, 

by their counsel of record, pursuant to Government Code section 11520, subd. (a), hereby 

withdraw their Notice of Defense filed in the above-captioned matter dated March 21, 2016. 

 

Dated: December 6, 2018.   

BELL, McANDREWS & HILTACHK, LLP 

 

By: ________________________________ 

CHARLES H. BELL, JR. 

Attorney for Respondents VENTURA COUNTY REPUBLICAN 

PARTY and ARKADY MILGRAM 

   

mailto:cbell@bmhlaw.com
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PROOF OF SERVICE  
 

PROOF OF SERVICE 
 

FPPC Nos. 16/100 

I am over the age of 18 and not a party to this cause.  I am employed in the county where 
the service occurred.  The following facts are within my first-hand and personal knowledge and if 
called as a witness, I could and would testify thereto. 

 
My business address is 455 Capitol Mall, Suite 600, Sacramento, CA 95814. 
 
On December 6, 2018, I served the foregoing document(s) entitled: 
 

WITHDRAWAL OF NOTICE OF DEFENSE 
 

on each person named below by attaching a true copy in a PDF addressed as shown below and by 
transmitting by email to the offices of the addressees following ordinary business practices during 
ordinary business hours, pursuant to electronic service consent by each respective party. 
 
Name and address of each person served: 

 
Angela J. Brereton 

Senior Counsel 

Fair Political Practices Commission 

1102 Q Street, Suite 3000 

Sacramento, CA 95811 

abrereton@fppc.ca.gov 

 

Office of Administrative Hearings 

Sacramento Office 

2349 Gateway Oaks Dr., suite 200 

Sacramento, CA 95833 

sacfilings@dgs.ca.gov 

 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing is true and correct.  Executed on December 6, 2018, at Sacramento, California. 
 
 
 
         
       KIERSTEN MERINA 
 

mailto:abrereton@fppc.ca.gov
mailto:sacfilings@dgs.ca.gov
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CONFIDENTIAL 

LEITER OF AGRF.F.MENT 
between 

Matthew Jubltz Consulting 
and 

Ventura County Republican Party 

THIS AGREEMENT, effective on the date set forth below, is between Matthew Jubitz Consulting ("MJC') and the 
Ventura County Republican Party rcLIENr) 

1) DUTIES 
CLIENT agrees to retain the services of MJC lo perform the following sarvlces per diSCussion 
a) Utilize and work with CLIENT, and others destgnated by CLIENT m soliciting funds for CLIENT 
b) Work with CLIENT, and others designated by CLIENT In the implementation of strategy lor 

fundraislng events: 
c) Provide advice and consullat10n on finance strategy 
d) Provide weekly reports on status of fundratslllg contributions pledged and received 
e) Development/ disbursement of lundraising materials 

1 lnvita1ions 
2. letters 
3 . Faxes 
4 . Emails 

2) ImM 
a) The term of this agreement shaH a>mmence upon signing and end on December 31, 2010 Execution 

of this Agreement shall conslilute a written notice to proceed for wont to be undertaken 
Documentation of all work shall be provided as specified under the terms of thts Agreement 

3) COMPENSATION 
a) CLIENT shall pay MJC a commission of t5% gross of all monteS raised from donors Identified or 

contacted by MJC MJC shall also be entitled to Its 15% commission for amounts contributed by 
don~ which are c:ontacted In connection with all events c:oordlnated by MJC, but are strateglcaHy 
directed to alternate CLIENT fundraising acttvlt1es by CLIENT Payment Is due upon tnvoice placed 
with the CLIENT. 

4) miYi 
a) MJC is a Cahfomla LLC (10 • 26-0673746) and shall not be tonsldered an employee and shall 

Indemnify and hold CLIENT harmless against any claims or liabilities as a result of federal and state 
ancome taJC or social security payments imposed on CLIENT resu ling from this contract 

b) CLIENT shan Indemnify and hold MJC harmle55 aga1nst any claims or llabllttln as; a result of federal 
and slate Income lax, sociel security payments or employment dtsabllity payments imposed on MJC 
resulting from this contract as a result of volunteers provided to MJC by CLIENT, CLIENT shah 11lso be 
responsible for the proper reporting of all funds r11tsed for CLIENT based upon reporting ol funds by 
MJC 

5) exPENSESIBK..LING; STOP WORK 
a) Monthly a>mmlsslons are due and payable as described In paragraph 3 MJC will provide CLIENT w•lh 

appropriate Invoices; 
I. MJC shall be reimbursed for raasonable and pre-approved expen&es by CLIENT with•n 10 

days of submission ol a reimbursement request with supporting documentation, includ ng 
rec:elpts and lnvolc:es, 

ii. All ~~JCpenses must be pre·apptoved except for phone expenses which wiU not e•c:eed 
$500/month unless otheiWise approved 

b) If MJC does not timely receive payment of Its monthly commissions and expenses witt110 10 bustness 
days of the lime payment Is due, MJC may halt an work on behalf of CLIENT untll alltnvo'ces are paid 
and CLIENT anal! remain reaponslble for ruu payment of all amounts due during the penod of non· 
service In order far work to resume 

FPPC008470 



CONFIDENTIAL 

6) TERMINATION 
a) E1ther CLIENT or MJC may terminate this agreement upon not less than 14 days wr1tten notice In the 

event of termination, payment for services rendered up to and Including the date of termination shan be 
based upon the work completed at the rates and coodi!IOns descr1bed in this Agreement and shall 
include payment of MJC's 15% commiSSIOn on funds raised by CLIENT prior to December 31, 2010. 
from donors Identified by MJC to CliENT 

7) DISPUTES 
a) Any anti all disputes over the terms of this Agreement, 'nclud1ng reimbursement of costs incurred by 

MJC, that are not resolved 10 a reasonable time by the paltles shall be submit1ed to, and settled by, an 
arbitrator agreeable to the parties or otherwise I censed by and under the rules established by the 
American Arbitration Association, and such arbitration shall be binding on the parties The prevailing 
party In said arbitration proceeding shall be entitled to have a11d recover from the losing party 
reasonable attorney's fees and costs incurred In the arbitration 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED 

=  
DATE: January 1, 2010 · DATE: __ z.._~ _z,_J_r.:..\0 ___ _ 

Taxpayer 101:  

FPPC008471 
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w \t\\ Cl. (V\ 
W. M. Templeton 

3535 Gillespie 1706 
Dallas, TX 75219 

P,t.Y TO THE 
oRDEROF--~~~n~dct~an~d~f=or~C~o~n=tr~ol~le~r2~0~1=0 ____________________ _ 

4341 

312912010 

$ -13,000.00 

Thirteen Thousand and 00110~·······-· .. ·········-·•••••••••"•••• ... ····--··-····-· .. ·-··· .. - ... .-.-·-.. •••00 .. • ,.., 
"""""6l ~ 

MEMC 

Strickland for Controller 2010 

tlF.;CO.P 
-j (£a)&--

201 0 Primary and General Election 

4341 13 000.00 , 

.. 
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Ventura County Republican Party 

t·lr. William t-1. Templeton 

Employer: self 

Nr. Templeton 

Occupation: Company O;>er.;, ·:.r 
3535 Gille~pie 
Dallas, TX 75219 
Pa\•mcnt Type: Personal Ct' 
cc Las: 4:  b:p. 

:I •.:: f:/7{: 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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6/7/2010 

· ~ lS 
0 .... 
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Donations Report 

S32,400.00 

Event: VCRP Cand dille Direct 
Bundler: 

$32,400.00 

P ·om:oy (..ro•-·rt.; ' 

$32,400.00 

r m~•\ C:~r~r~ 

S32,400.00 

$32,'100.00 

$32,400.00 

T( Lt=1 

$32,400.00 

Tc~i! 

$32,400.00 

.WNJ .iDONA TEpro.co-n 

FPPC008451 



W.ll. Templeton 
3535 Gilsspi! 17U!l 
O.S. TX752t9 

61512010 

( $ -J2,400.00 

Thirty-Two Thci'JsanO Fo\11' Huncl:ed and 00!10o-··-···--····------·--.. --..... 
OOUARS m =-

Ver'Ua County Republican Party 

-=-· 
 

4444 32,400.00 
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W. AndreW F. Barth 
Employer: Capital Groop 
occupaUon: Invcstmt!nt Manag!ment 
2200 Chaucer Road 
san Marino, CA 91108 
payment Type: PefSOOCII Cheek 
cc Last 4: 4710 exp: 

PrintC!d n/2Bf10\0 

CONFIDENTIAL 

6/18/2010 

Total 

Page 1 

Donations Report 

Event: 15 OoWntDWn 
Bundler: 

$6,500.00 

General 
$6,500.00 

$6,500.00 

Total 
$6,500.00 

www.IOONATEpro.com 

FPPC000651 
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Ventura County Republican Party 
Batch 11 5 
Date Submitted. 6/18/'2010 
Donor 

Mr. Andrew F. Barth 
Employer: Capital Group 
Occupation: Investment Management 
2200 Olaucer Road 
San Marino, CA 91108 

Printed 6/18/2010 

CONFIDENTIAL 

Salutation 

Andy 

0 .. 

Date 

6/16/2010 

Page 1 

Batch Report 

Primary Genera! 

$15,000.00 

Event: VCRP candidate Direct 
Bundler: 

Pnmary General 

$15,000.00 

Total 

$15,000.00 

Total 
$15,000.00 

pro 

www.iDONATEpro.com 

FPPC008447 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Ok, great. Thank you 

Matthew 

Matthe~v Jubitz U ] 
Monday, March 29, 2010 4:16PM 
W. M. Templeton' 
RE: Friendly reminder: Strickland for Controller contribution form 

From: W. t-1. Templeton [mailto: ] 
Sent: Monday, March 29, 2010 4:15PM 
To: Natthew Jubitz 
Subject: RE: Friendly reminder: Strickland for Controller contribution form 

One check it is. I'll send it. 

Please tell Tony that I am pushing the folks at PXP, but they are a little publicity-shy right now. I should know more 
tomorrow 

Bill 

From: f•1atthew Jubit2 [mailto:j ] 
Sent: Nonday, March 29, 2010 4:14PM 
To: W. M. Templeton 
Subject: RE: Friendly reminder: Strickland for Controller contribution form 

Either. If you are sendtng from you and a spouse. both names need to ba on the check Otherwise, it can all be one 
check 

From: W. f.T. Templeton [mailto: ] 
Sent: t-1onday, March 29, 2010 3:48PM 
To: Natthew Jubitz 
Subject: RE: Friendly reminder: Strickland for Controller contribulton form 

Matthew, 

Do I send two checks for 56,500 or one check for 513,000? 

Bill 

...... . .......... 
From: Matthew Jubil2 [mailto:j ] 
Sent: Monday, March 29, 2010 3:17PM 
To: W. M. Templeton 
Subject: Friendly rem·nder: Strickland for Controller contrlbution form 

HI MR Templeton. 

Just wanted to follow up on your generous pledge or 513,000 to Tony's campaign for Controller. We haven't yet received 
your checks. Just wondering if they got lost in the mail or if you have yet to send them. 

Thank you for your help. 

CONf::IOENTIAL FPPC006299 



Mall hew 

From: Jubitz, Matthew [mailto:j ] 
Sent: Friday, March 05, 2010 5:04 PM 
To: 'WMTempleton@dcorllc.com' 
Subject: Strickland for Controller contribution form 

Ht Mr. Templeton, 

Per your conversation with Tony, thank you for agreeing to max out to our race for Controller. Please see attached 
contribution form. 

I am available at any time, at the number below, should you have any questions. 

Thank you for your support. 

Matthew 

Mallhew Jubitz 
Strickland for Controller 2010 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16t~ Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
(213) 973-2001 Direct 
(213) 652-1005 Facsimile 

CONFIDENTIAL 
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From: t-1atthew Jubitz [mailto:j  
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 5:11 PN 
To: W. M. Templeton 
Subject: RE: VCRP contnbution form 

Sorry, I was going to send the Whitman form under separate cover It is attached to this email The maximum 
contribution each individual can donate to Meg Whitman is 525.900 

Please send both checks to our office at: 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S . Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles CA 90071 

Thank you again, 

Matthew 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
(213) 973-2001 Direct 
(213) 652-1005 Facsimile 

From: W. t-1. Templeton [mailto: ] 
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 5:07 PM 
To: Matthew Jubitz 
Subject: RE: VCRP contribution form 

Matthew, 

Tony was also gomg to ask you if you could dtg up the form for a contnbulton to Meg Whitman 

He was also going to ask you where r could Fed Ex the checks 

From: Natthew Jubitz [mai to: ) 
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 5:06 Pt-1 
To: W. to\. Templeton 
Subject: VCRP contribution form 

HI Mr Templeton 

Attached is the Ventura County Repubhcan Party con!ribulton form. 

Thank you for your generous donation of S32 400 to the candtdate d reel fund at the Party 

Please don 'I hestlate to cal' me shourd you have any questions 

Thank you 

Matthew 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPC008820 



.. 

Los Angeles, CA 90071 
(213) 973-2001 Direct 
(213) 652-1005 Facsimile 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPC008821 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Matthew Jubitz U ] 
Thursday, June 10,2010 4:19PM 
'Andy.Barth ' 
RE: Post Election breakfast 
General ConlribuUon form.pdf; VCRP General Contribution Form.pdf 

I know ..• it was a really hard night for Sacramento Legislators ••• we were glad to have the 
6BX - although we expected 65X (we really didn't spend much money on the primary - about 
$159,999 to lock down all the slates and I am glad we spent itl). 

Mike Villines (he was the minority leader of the CA assembly) who was virtually unopposed for 
Insurance Commissioner (his opponent only put his name on the ballot - spent $B), beat him 
51-49. 

Abel Maldonado (sitting Lt. Gov.) only drew 42X~ but was in a crowded 5 way race ••• otherwise 
he might have lost. 

As per our conversation, I have attached the general election contribution info~ation for 
Tony. You and Avery can do the max of $13,eee. I also put the form for the Ventura county 
Republican Party candidate direct committee. 

Really appreciate your support. 

We were thinking that Tony and Jeff Randle (Meg's Chief Strategist) would put together a 
little post election discussion. Would you be available next Thursday to attend a lunch 
downtown? 

Thank you again~ 

Matthew 

Matthew Jubi tz 
515 s. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los AngelesJ CA 9BB71 
(213) 973-2901 Direct 
(213) 652-lBBS Facsimile 

-----Original Message-----
From: Andy.Barth  [mailto: ] 
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2019 12:34 PM 
To: Matthew Jubitz 
Subject: Re: Post Election breakfast 

Thanks, Hatt. But. I will not be able to join. Nice win. A little closer than expected but a 
nice win nonetheless. 
Andy 

----- Original Message -----
From: "Matthew Jubitz• [j ] 
Sent: 06/19/2919 12:28 PM HST 
To: Andy Barth 
subject: FW: Post Election breakfast 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPCOOB119 



Dear Andy, 

You are cordially invited to join Tony Strickland this Saturday {June 12th) for breakfast at 
Bam for a post election analysis at the Westlake Village Inn. 

As seating is limited, please RSVP to me if you can join us. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Matthew 

Matthew lubitz 
Strickland for Controller lBlB 
515 s. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 98917 
(213) 622-3995 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPC008120 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Matthew Jubitz ) 
Tuesday, June 15, 2010 2.51 PM 
'chrisuu@pacbell.net'; 'Tony Strickland' 
RE: Progress Report 

I know Tony and I decided no. 

Matthew 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
(213) 973-2001 Direct 
(213) 652-1 005 Facsimile 

From: chrisuu t [mail  
Sent: Tuesday, June 15, 2010 2:29PM 
To: Matthew Jubitz; Tony Strickland; Kirk Hutson 
Subject: Re: Progress Report 

You're right \\C ha,·c not yet But should we add a line item for "yc gop" 

It would be whatever the amount raised/pledged minus 7% 

Sent from my \' cri7.on Wireless Black11erry 

From: ":-..lallhc\\ Jubill.'' < > 
D:ttc: Tuc. 15 Jun 2010 14 24 :20-0700 
To: <chrisuu >, 'Tony Strickland '<  >, 'Kirk 
I futson'< > 
Subject: RE· Progress Report 

He d1d. 32.400. but I am not aware of whether or not a donation from VCRP has come in to Strickland for Controller. 

Matthew 

Matthew Jubilz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles. CA 90071 
{213) 973-2001 Direct 
{213) 652-1005 Facsimile 

From: chrisuu t [mailto: t] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 15, 2010 2:23PM 
To: Matthew Jubitz; Tony Strickland; Kirk Hutson 
Subject: Re: Progress Report 

I thought temp let om ,., as doing something to \ c gop'l 

Sent from my Veri7on Wireless 13lackBcrry 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPC018443 



.. 
From: "Matthew Jubitz" < > 
Date: Tue. 15 Jun 2010 14·]6·33 -0700 
To: 'Chris\\' '<c t>. 'Tony Strickland'< P. 
< > 
Subject: RE Progress Report 

Have we received any party money? 

Matthew 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
(213) 973-2001 Direct 
(213) 652-1005 Facsimile 

From: Chris W. [mailto:c t] 
Sent: Tuesday, June 15, 2010 2:12PM 
To: Matthew Jubitz; Tony Strickland;  
Subject: Re: Progress Report 

docs your amount includr party mont>y? 

Lysn hns us taking in 452,700 

From: Matthew Jubitz <j > 
To: Tony Strickland <t t>; c ;  
Sent: Tue, June 15, 2010 1:15:24 PM 
Subject: Progress Report 

Hi All , 

Please review, I would like to send to Joe soon, but wanted your feedback first 

Thank you 

Matthew 

Matthew Jubitz 
515 S. Figueroa Street 
16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
(213) 973-2001 Direct 
(213) 652-1005 Facsimile 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPC018444 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

tonystrlckland t 
Monday, June 26, 2010 1:10PM 
Chris Wangsaporn; Matthew Jubitz 
Re: FYI VCGOP check 

47,488 raised. 7 percent 2888 equals 44,688. Vcgop gives us 488 to equal 45k. 488 not 688. 
Sent on the No1·1 Net1~ork from my Sprint11 BlackBerry 

-----Original Message----
From: chrisuu t 
Date: ~\on, 28 Jun 2B1B 19: 59:48 
To: Tony Strick! and< >; ~latthc~/ Jubi tz< > 
Reply -To : chrisuu  
Subject : Re : FYI VCGOP check 

What arc you talking about 688 dollars? 
Sent from my Verizon Wireless BlackBerry 

·----Original Message-- -- -
From: tonystrickland  
Date: ~\on, 28 Jun 2818 19:56:43 
To: Chris Wangsaporn >; Matthew Jubitz<j > 
Reply -To: tonystrickland  
Subject: Re: FYI VCGOP check 

Have mike write a 45k check to us. (He can get us 688 dollars). Matthew--do you think sue 
graff ~Jill do anything before 38th?? If not get 45k check from vcgop. 
Sent on the Now Network from my Sprint~ BlackBerry 

-----Original Message-----
From: tonystrickland  
Date : ~\on, 28 Jun 2818 19:54:28 
To: Chris Wangsaporn >; Matthew Jubitzcj > 
Reply-To: tonystrickland  
Subject: Re: FYI VCGOP check 

No!!!! Don't take jubitz out. We will pay jubitz from our acct. We need to hit 2 million 
raised for team meg. 
------Original Message------
From: Chris Wangsaporn 
To: Tony Strickland 
To: Matthew Jubitz 
Rcplylo: Chris Wangsaporn 
Sent : Jun 28, 2018 12:48 PM 
Subject : FYI VCGOP check 

Tony- you received 

32,4B8 templeton 
15,8B8 barth 

Total of 47.488 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPC00716~ 



After taking out 2888 for VCRP 7% and 7,118 for Jubitz 15% 1-\ike ~-1ill be cutting you a check 
for 37,498. 

1-\atthe~J- Osborn would like you to invoice him . If I were you I v:ould do it right a~-1ay or you 
may get scrm-1ed . 

cw 
Sent from my Verizon Wireless BlackBerry 

Sent on the Now Network from my Sprint~ BlackBerry No virus found in this inco~ing message. 
Checked by AVG · W'tM.avg.com 
Version: 9.8.838 I Virus Database: 271.1.1/2968 - Releas e Date: 86/27 / 18 23:37:88 

CONFIDENTIAL FPPC00716 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

INVESTIGATION REPORT 

CASE NO: 1110073 

CASE NAME: William Templeton 

REPORT DATE: December22, 2013 Page 1 of3 page(s). 

II REPORT TYPE: Interview Report #6 

III REPORT PREPARED BY: A. Di DATE SIGNED: \ '}..11-1 ~ 

IV DISTRIBUTION: Brereton, File 

VI. INTERVIEW SUMMARY ONLY: 

Interview Tape Recorded: Y cs 

Manner of Interview: Telephone 

Person(s) Interviewed: William Templeton 
3535 Gillespie #706 
Dallas, TX 75219 

Phone Number:  

V. SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: 

On December 13, 2013, I conducted a telephonic interview of respondent William 
Templeton (Templeton). Also present were respondent council, Andrew Rockas and 
Commission Council, Bridgette Castillo. The following summarizes our interview: 

Respondent Templeton has been making contributions towards California races since 2001. 
He holds business interests in the oil and gas industry, and limited real estate investments 



William Templeton 
Case No. 11/0073 

and therefore is interested in political and business dealings. 

C. Page2 

On or about March 29,2010, as best he could guess he received a personal call from Tony 
Strickland soliciting a contribution towards his campaign. Templeton has only met 
Strickland on maybe three occasions and considers him a mere acquaintance. He recalled 
giving $13k to the Tony Strickland for Controller 2010 campaign and was aware there was a 
contribution limit, although he couldn't recall how he knew that. 

Templeton recalled receiving an email from Mathew Jubitz towards the beginning of 
October 2010, extending an invitation for a dinner event. He guessed there were 
approximately 10 people who attended held at Sly's Restaurant in Carpentaria, CA on 
October 12, 20 I 0. Templeton understood the dinner was more of an update on how the 
republicans were doing in the races. He recalled Strickland spoke briefly and detailed that 
the republican ticket was going fairly well, including Meg Whitman's race and that success 
would depend on the tum out to vote. It was then someone, who he couldn't recall, asked 
how they could support the efforts of the turn out to vote. It was then again someone, 
possibly Strickland, responded that the "central committees" supported those efforts. 

Ventura County Republican Partv Central Committee 

Templeton's main focus was in Ventura County since that is where most of his business 
interests originate. He recalled making a $32,400 contribution, but couldn't recall why he 
gave that specific amount. Wanting to do more, he asked amongst his business peers for 
ways to support pro-business candidates in the county. He dido 't recall who he spoke to 
specifically, but was told the Ventura County Republican Central Committee would 
distribute contributions best and more so give towards the tum out to vote. Additionally, he 
didn't want to be identified as a main contributor so he felt comfortable making the 
contribution to a central committee. 

Stanislaus Republican Central Committee 

Templeton recalled giving a $15k contribution to the Stanislaus Republican Central 
Committee in response to the dinner event. Someone, again possibly Strickland, had 
indicated if anyone was interested in giving to the central committees, understanding this 
would help out the turn out to vote efforts, to see him after dinner. Templeton didn't recall 
who he spoke to, but mentioned that he wanted to" help out a little." Later Matthew Jubitz 
then contacted him by email and Templeton sent him the check. 

Email from Matthew Jubitz 

Templeton believed he received an email from Jubitz shortly after the dinner event, because 
he expressed interest in giving to the central committees. Templeton didn't recall sending 
Jubitz the check, but agreed that he did so based on a review of records. He didn't know 
why Jubitz requested his contribution check be sent to him rather than directly to Stanislaus 



.. . ' . . ' 
William Templeton Page 3 
Case No. 11/0073 

Republican Central Committee, but never questioned it because Templeton assumed he was 
a representative of the republican party in general. Templeton later learned from his 
attorney, Andy Rockas that Jubitz worked for the Strickland committee. 

Other than letters of thank you letter he received from the central committees for the 
contributions, Templeton maintains he has never had direct contact with either Ventura RCC 
or the Stanislaus RCC. 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

INVESTIGATION REPORT 

l CASE NO: 11 /0073 

CASE NAME: William Templeton 

REPORT DATE: July I, 2014 Page 1 of3 page(s). 

II REPORT TYPE: Interview Report #24 

III REPORT PREPARED BY: A. Diaz  DATE SIGNED: 1 ~\ .1 ~ 

IV DISTRIBUTION: Brereton, File 

VI. INTERVIEW SUMMARY ONLY: 

Interview Tape Recorded: Yes 

Manner of Interview: In Person 

Person(s) Interviewed: Mike Osborn, Chairman 
Ventura County Republican Party 
80 Wood Rd, Suite 304A 
Camarillo, CA 93010 

Phone Number: , mobile 

V. SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: 

On July I, 2014, I conducted an in person interview with Mike Osborn, Chairman ofthe 
Ventura County Republican Central Committee (VCRCC). WE discussed matter relative to 
the 2010 State Controller race and the 2010 Ventura Board ofSupervisor election. The 
following summarizes our interview: 



.. . '. 
William Templeton 
Case No. 11/0073 

c c Page2 

Mike Osborn is the Chairman of the VCRCC and additionally has been the treasurer for the 
California Republican Party for the last three years. 

Contributions to candidates are discussed and agreed between members of the VCRCC 
Executive Committee. The committee is comprised of up to ten members. At the time ofthe 
201 0 contributions Obsorn could not recall how many people or exactly who were on the 
committee but provided, himself, Chris Collier, and Mark Lunn (now retired) as possible 
members at that time. Candidate support is routinely brought up by members, during 
meetings. The committee agrees collaboratively after discussion and the contribution is 
made if it is decided so. Regarding the contribution to the Strickland for Controller 2010 
committee of$45,000, Osborn could not recall the specifics but affirms it must have been 
discussed and agreed upon between the committee members. When asked about the nature 
of which the contributions were made, one for $44,100 and the other for $900 days apart, 
Osborn had no recollection as to why the contributions were made in that fashion. When 
asked about the additional $6,000 made in October, Osborn dido 't know. 

He stated there are no meeting minutes, notes, audio recordings, or video footage of any 
time at these meetings. He was aware of the contribution limits for both central committees 
and individual contributions to candidates. 

Osborn provided that he and Tony Strickland are like "best friends" and have been for some 
20 years. He offered that Strickland is a "stand-up" guy. 

Templeton and Barth Contribution 

When asked about the contribution by William Templeton of $32,400 Osborn stated it was 
so long ago he could not recall specifics, but acknowledge the contribution. When asked 
about the contribution by Andrew Barth of$15,000 again he could not recall specifics. 

Chris Collier 

When asked about Chris Collier, he stated that Collier did consulting work for the VCRCC 
in 2010, prior to his coming on board as executive director of the VCRCC. Collier operates 
the business Rincon Strategies. 

Osborn stated it wasn't terribly uncommon for individuals from other committees (such as 
Chris Wangsaporn) to let him or Chris Collier know that contributions were coming their 
way. Often times if an individual maxed out, they would give to the central committee with 
knowledge that the central committee would support a candidate. 

When presented with an email that Osborn was cc'd, which Chris Wangsapom sent to an 
individual requesting for $1 ,000 to send to the VCRCC to help Audra Strickland's 
committee, Osborn stated it was strictly for member communications. 
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When asked about the email between Chris Wangsaporn, Matthew Jubtiz, and Tony 
Strickland regarding the $45,000 contribution request from Mike (Osborn). Osborn stated it 
was coincidental that the conversation between the three and the amount the VCRCC 
contributed were the same. 

Matthew Jubtiz 

Matthew Jubitz was hired as a contractor to do fundraising for the VCRCC. Osborn had 
known Jubitz for many years prior. When funds were pledged Jubtiz would notify the 
committee of the funds coming to them. Osborn spoke to him occasionally but didn't think 
he was the main point of contact for Jubitz and didn't necessarily "direct" him on his duties 
because he was a contractor who pretty much did his own thing. When asked who would 
have been his point of contact, Osborn did not know. 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

INVESTIGATION REPORT 

I CASE NO: 11-0073 CASE NAME: William M. Templeton REPORT NO.: 27 

REPORT DATE: 8/25/14 PAGE I of 5 page(s) 

II REPORT TYPE: Interview Summary 

III REPORT PREPARED BY: Jeffrey Kamigaki  DATESIGNED: ~--U?-l'f 

IV DISTRffiUTION: Angela Brereton 

V INTERVIEW SUMMARY ONLY: 

Interview tape recorded: Yes 

Manner of interview: In Person 

Person(s) interviewed: Chris Collier, Rincon Strategies 

Work address: 

Work phone: 

Home address: 

Home phone: 

VI NARRATIVE: 

On July 15, 2014, Annaraine Diaz, FPPC Special Investigator, interviewed Chris Collier, Rincon Strategies, in 
person. The interview was held in Encino, CA. In summary, Collier said the following: 

Collier provided background information of himself. He indicated that his first ever Ventura County 
Republican Central Committee (VCRCC) meeting he attended was in May 2008. He attended the meeting with 
a family friend who was running for a judge position. Collier indicated that at the time he was helping the judge 
candidate with his campaign in 2008. He attended the meeting just to check out what the VCRCC was all 
about. In summer of 2008, Collier was hired by the CAGOP to be a field rep for Ventura and Santa Cruz 
counties. As a field rep he was responsible for phone banks. Collier indicated in 2008, Tony Strickland won 
his election as state senator and he was offered a part time position with state senator Tony Strickland. 
Approximately in January 2009, he signed with the VCRCC as the Executive Director on a contract basis. He 
has been an independent contractor with the VCRCC ever since January 2009. Collier indicated that it is not a 
full time position with the VCRCC. 



11-0073 William M. Templeton 
Page 2 or5 

Rincon Strategies: 

c c 

Collier started Rincon Strategies in the Fall of 2008. The purpose of Rincon Strategies was so Collier could get 
involved in consulting work. He started the business the same time he was still working for the CAGOP. The 
business initially was a catch all and not entirely political. He indicated that he did website design and then 
evolved into more consulting work. In 2010, Collier was the only full-time employee with Rincon Strategies. 
He indicated that he had employees that started in 2011 and 2012. 

VCRCC Process: 
Collier did not remember the contribution that VCRCC gave to the Tony Strickland for Controller 2010 
committee. 

Collier described the VCRCC process when money is needed. Collier indicated that he will initially contact the 
treasurer, Kelly Lawler, by phone or email, and informs her that he needs to pay the following VCRCC bills, 
such as rent, utilities, phones, contract workers, etc. Lawler will generate the checks in her system and Collier 
receives the checks in the mail. Collier would then take the checks to Mike Osborn to have him sign the 
checks. After the checks are signed, Collier would address and stamp the checks and mail them off. Collier 
indicated that there have been other times where he has handwritten the checks at Lawler's approval, 
photocopied the checks and sent them back. Collier never signed checks, only processed the checks. He 
indicated that either Mike Osborn or Arkady Milgram needed to sign all of the VCRCC checks. 

Lawler's role is the bookkeeper and keeps the balance for VCRCC. Arkady Milgram is the VCRCC treasurer 
and handles the reports. Collier indicated this was the best to his knowledge in what Lawler and Milgram do 
for the VCRCC. He is not "intimately" involved with the financial side of the VCRCC. 

Lawler is a bookkeeper vendor. Collier indicated the Lawler advises whether a check can be cut or not based 
on the balance of the bank. 

Milgram is on the VCRCC Executive Committee as Treasurer. Collier believed that Milgram does have a vote 
on the Executive Committee. 

How contributions are decided by VCRCC: 
FPPC Special Investigator Diaz referenced the total contribution of $45,000.00 and $6,000.00 that was made by 
the VCRCC to Tony Strickland for Controller 2010. In response, Collier guessed that for such contributions to 
be executed, it would have to be an Executive Committee decision. Typically there is an Executive Committee 
meeting where the committee members will go over and approve a list of items. 

Collier indicated that as Executive Director, he is not a voting member on the Executive Committee. He is a 
staff member. He does not remember the specific contributions that were referenced by Special Investigator 
Diaz. Collier could not remember being in attendance at a meeting involving the discussion of the $45,000.00 
and $6,000.00 contributions. Collier indicated that it is possible that he was at a meeting where the Executive 
Committee approved the contributions, but he could not positively confirm if he was at the meeting or not. 
Collier indicated that during campaign season he was sometimes in attendance and other times not in attendance 
at the Executive Committee meetings. 

Collier did not know if there are normally minutes for Executive Committee meetings. He indicated that he 
does not handle the minutes. 

Collier indicated that he is currently on the VCRCC Committee. 
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Collier confirmed that he was paid to work on Audra Strickland's campaign as Campaign Manager when she 
was running for Board of Supervisors in 2010. Collier confirmed that while working on the Audra Strickland 
campaign, he was still doing contract work for the VCRCC. 

Matthew Jubitz: 
Collier identified Matthew Jubitz as a professional fundraiser out of Los Angeles, CA. Collier confirmed that 
Jubitz's company is Pluvious Group. He has known Jubitz since 2008-2009. He believes that Jubitz helped 
with Audra's campaign. Collier indicated that Jubitz was giving Audra Strickland's campaign information on 
donors. Collier indicated that Jubitz worked for the party in 2009 in raising money. Collier could not positively 
confirm if Jubitz had worked for Strickland for Controller 2010 or not in 2010. 

Marina Stavrakas: 
Collier identified Marina Stavrakas as Jubitz's assistant. Collier, to the best of his knowledge, met Stavrakas in 
Spring of 2012. Collier confirmed that Stavrakas works for Pluvious Group, but does not know her official 
working title for the company. 

Chris Wangsaporn: 
Collier has known Wangsapom since May/June 2008. Collier confirmed that he and Wangsapom were both 
working on Tony Strickland's state senate race in 2008. Collier indicated that Wangsapom was on Tony 
Strickland's 2008 state senate race that he worked with while he (Collier) was working for the state CAGOP 
because the CAGOP supports candidates. Collier was not sure ifWangsaporn was the campaign manager for 
Tony Strickland during the 2008 state senate race. Collier indicated that when he became Tony Strickland's 
district rep for the senate, he remembered that Chris Wangsaporn was Tony Strickland's Chief of Staff. Collier 
indicated that to the best of his knowledge, Wangsaporn has only worked with Tony Strickland. 

Lysa Ray: 
Collier identified Lysa Ray as the Treasurer for Audra Strickland in 2010. He believed that Ray was the 
Treasurer for Tony Strickland's Controller 2010 campaign, but was not positive. 

William Templeton: 
Collier indicated that he does not know William Templeton. Collier indicated that he was aware of a 
contribution by Templeton. Collier indicated that the only reason he knew about Templeton's contribution was 
because VCRCC was audited and he saw the large contribution. 

Email#l: 
FPPC Special Investigator Diaz referenced an email dated February 16, 2010 from Tony Strickland to Audra 
Strickland, Joel Angeles, and Chris Collier. 

Collier indicated that Joel Angeles was the campaign strategist. Collier indicated that he was responsible for the 
day to day operations of the campaign, but not strategy. 

Collier did not remember the conversation in the email that FPPC Special Investigator Diaz referenced. 

Collier recalled that one of the conversations that people had in Audra Strickland's race in 2010 was that the 
Republican Party spent money to support Audra Strickland to communicate with Republicans. They used 
member communication tools. Collier indicated that he is not a "guru," but understands that member 
communications exist. Collier indicated that he knew that when it came to fundraising there was conversation 
about the opportunity to communicate with Republicans and the base. 



11-0073 William M. Templeton 
Page 4 of5 

c c 
Collier indicated that he was on a lot of emails related to finance with Audra Strickland's campaign involving 
caging and all of the donors coming into Audra Strickland' s campaign. 

Email #2: 
FPPC Special Investigator Diaz referenced an email dated February 24, 2010 from Tony Strickland to Audra 
Srickland, Joel Angeles, and Chris Collier. 

Collier indicated that the conversation in the email was about fundraising. Collier indicated that he did not 
handle fundraising for Audra Strickland. He did not understand the process and it was not his focus on a day to 
day basis. Collier indicated that he was not watching for anything involving money being sent to VCGOP. He 
did not remember any specifics about the email. 

Collier indicated that he was kept in the loop and informed of what was going on during the campaign by being 
cc'd in emails. He was not making any decisions. 

Email#3: 
FPPC Special Investigator Diaz referenced an email thread dated May 17, 2010 from Rock Zierman to Chris 
Wangsaporn, who was cc'd on the email. Collier identified Zierman who works for CIPA, California 
Independent Petroleum Association. Collier indicated that Zierman is not involved with political fundraising or 
consulting. 

Collier indicated that whenever Chris Wangsaporn said, "be on the lookout for something," he meant for Collier 
to go to the mailbox and make sure when something comes in it is then deposited. It is the caging process. 
Collier indicated that Wangsaporn has used this type of language before. He provided an example in 2009 
when Wangsaporn used the same language when they worked on a hall of fame dinner. 

Collier described, in general terms, that as a party, all Republican central committees have trouble raising 
money. When people want to help and raise money for the party that is what Collier saw in the email that FPPC 
Special Investigator Diaz was referencing to in the interview. Collier indicated that it looked like money was 
raised and Wangsaporn said to look out for the check and when it comes in the mail, go and deposit the check. 

Collier indicated that he would have never been part of the conversation if the VCGOP to turn around and make 
contributions to Audra and Tony Strickland's committees. Collier indicated that his job was to "take stuff and 
mechanically put it in the bank." 

Email#4: 
FPPC Special Investigator Diaz referenced an email thread dated June 28, 2010. Diaz described the email as 
conversations between Tony Strickland, Chris Wangsaporn, and Matthew Jubitz. 

Collier remembered that he paid Jubitz and processing the check. He recalled that Kelly Lawler sent it down 
and Collier got it signed. He remembered Jubitz calling him asking if he had a check for him. Collier 
remembered that he told Jubitz that he mailed it. 

Collier indicated that he did not know anything about the conversations in the email. 

Collier did not remember how the VCGOP (Ventura County) made a contribution for $45,000. 

Collier never signed any checks. Collier only had either a treasurer or chairman sign the checks. Akardy 
Milgram or Mike Osborn would have been the signers for checks. 
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He was not aware of the $45,000 contribution made by the VCGOP to Tony Strickland for Controller 2010 
committee. 

Checks: 
FPPC Special Investigator Diaz referenced two contribution checks, one for $44,100.00 (dated 6128/2010) and 
$900.00 (dated 6/30/2010) from the Ventura County Republican Central Committee to Strickland for Controller 
2010. Collier indicated that if the checks were printed out then they came from Ke11y Lawler. 

Collier indicated that it was not his hand writing on the check for $900.00 from the Ventura County Republican 
Central Committee to Tony Strickland for Controller 2010. He could not determine who's hand writing was on 
the $900.00 check. 



From: tonystrickland ®  
Subject: Re: los robles hospital 

Date: February 16, 2010 11:18:33 AM PST 
To: • Audra Strickland" , "Joel Angeles• , 

chrls.colller@  
Reply-To: tonystrickland@  

Great! We need to sit down with justin about big check for party money. Audra, we need to put together list of 30-40 pac's that 
might help withj party checks. Let's set up one on one meetings with them. Also, we need to do the same down south wth folks who 
can write Sk·100k checks. Don~ have much time. Great news! We should ask justin for 10k and expect Sk. Tony 
-Original Message---
From: Audra Strickland 
To. Tony Strickland 
To: Joel Angeles 
To: chris.collier@  
Sent: Feb 16, 2010 10:52 AM 
Subject: los robles hospital 

krfs carraway bowman has requested a donation from the CA Hospital Assn on our behalf 
But she also said that if there is a way that the hospital can be helpful to let her know, but they just as a hospital cannot come out in 
support. A 
audra 

Sent on the Now Network· from my SprintA® BlackBerry 

VCRP000135 



From: tonystrickland®  
Subject: Re: los robles hospital 

Date: February 16,2010 11 :19'14AM PST 
To: "Joel Angeles"  "Audra Strickland" c  "Chris Collier'' 

<  
Reply-To: tonystrickland @  

Agree with joel on all as wei as 10k for vcgop 
---Original Message-----· 
From: Joel Angeles 
To Audra Strickland 
To: Tony Strickland 
To: Chris Collier 
Sent: Feb 16, 201 0 11 :00 AM 
Subject: RE: los robles hospital 

That is good. 

Talk to Tony about talking to Justin Matheson and possibly Kathryn Scott. 

To give to any or all of the following: 
-Supervisor Acct ($700 max) 
- VCRCC (no max) 
- OHice holder account ($3,900 max) 

JA 

To: tonystrickland@ joelangeles@ chris.collier®r  
Subject: los robles hospital 
Date: Tue, 16 Feb 2010 13:52:06 -0500 
From: audrastrlckland@  

kris carraway bowman has requested a donation from the CA Hospital Assn on our behalf 
But she also said that If there Is a way that the hospital can be helpful to let her know, but they just as a hospital cannot come out In 
support. A 
audra 

Your E-mail and More On·the·Go. Get Windows Live Hotmait Free. S'gn up now. 

Sent on the Now Network· from my SprlntA® BlackBerry 

VCRP000136 



From: tonystrlckland®  
Subject: Ae: CONAOENTIAL ·campaign update 

Date: February 24, 2010 6:32:08 AM PST 
To: "Joel Angeles" , "Audra Strickland" , "Chris Collier" 

 
Reply-To: tonystrickl and @  

That Is good for now. Let's see who gives big money to vcgop and then we can Inform them with the 
hope of asking for more last min money 
Sent on the Now Network · from my SprlntA® BlackBerry 

From: Joel Angeles  
Date: Wed, 24 Feb 2010 00:12:20 -0800 
To: Aud ra Strlckla nd  Ch rls Collier<  Tony 
Strlckla nd  
Subject: RE: CONFIDENTIAL • campaign update 

Audra and Tony: Who should be Included? 

I came up with these names: 

SUPPORTERS 
rashes 
Amodel 
Bill Lynch 
Mike Osborn 
Phtl Chase 
Lynn Jensen 

STAFF & Family 
Rondl 
Wangsaporn 
Hutson 
MattG 
MatthewJ 
Darin Henry 
Darlene Carson 

From: joelangeles@  
To: audrastrlckland@  chrls.colller@  joelangeles@  
Subject: CONFIDENTIAL - campaign update 
Date: Wed, 24 Feb 2010 00:01 :25 -0800 

CHRIS: The letter below Is good to go anytime. 

TEAM Audra Strickland: 

As one of our campaign's closest supporters, we wanted to send you this update but we hope you do not 
share It with anyone. I hope you understand the Importance of keeping this Information under wraps. In 
any campaign, the less your opponents know of your activities and the success of your campaign 

VCRP000145 



programs, the greater the advantage you have. 

As we have begun to build this campaign, here Is a quick update. Last Friday marked the first 2 weeks of 
the campaign and we have done a great job so far. 

Audra Strickland herself has been busy doing the people's work In Sacramento. Although she would 
prefer to meet with voters, she has received a lot of press and media attention for the work she does on 
their behalf. 

In fact last Friday, she taped a five minute segment to be atred many dozens of times on the cable 
channel, Headline News Network starting next month. As you know, Mrs. Strickland and her work to 
eliminate waste was featured these last 2 weeks In the V. C. Star, L. A. Times, Sacramento Bee, CNN 
News, CBS News, SF Examiner, and many blog sites. 

This Is great press coverage that will benefit our campaign. As we all know, voters of the 2nd district will 
be very happy to hear how hard Audra Strickland Is fighting to protect taxpayers. 

Within the last two weeks, we have been precinct walking on each day that It did not rain. So far, we 
have walked 19 precincts. To tell you how Important that Is, there are only about 65 precincts of the 
total of 87 precincts In the 2nd District that are walkable and that we have targeted for our walk 
program. In only the first 2 weeks of this campaign, we have already walked 29% of our targeted 
precincts. 

We are just getting started and our walk program will be growing each day of the campaign. However, at 
this rate, we will be able to finish the first round of precinct walking In 3 weeks and walk each targeted 
neighborhood at least 6 times before the election. To put this In perspective, most campaigns plan to 
walk a district once and often don't even finish that. In stark contrast, our opponent has not been seen 
walking precincts. In fact, rather than meeting voters like we are, she was seen gardening in her front 
yard this past Saturday afternoon. 

As our campaign effort grows In the coming weeks, please be on the look out for the following --We will 
soon be opening up a campaign headquarters. we are In the final negotiations for a few locations and 
will decide on one this week. 

Also, we will soon be launching our campaign website. The "electronic" Infrastructure for the site Is 
finished and the only thing that Is left to do Is completing the text for a few of the pages. 

But most Importantly, be on the lookout for our growing ground campaign team walking door-to-door. 
Meeting voters face-to -face has the greatest Impact on the outcome of an election. 

On behalf of the campaign, thank you for your support. Please feel free to contact me If you have any 
questions about the campaign. 

Sincerely, 

Chris Colller 

Campaign Manager 

Hotmall: Powerful Free email with security by Microsoft. Get It now. 
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Your E-mail and ~lore On·the-Go. Get Windows Uve Hotmall Free. Sign up now. 
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From: chrls@tonystrickland.com 
Subject: Fw: VCRP 

Date: May 17, 201010:24:45 AM PDT 
To: "Chris Co!iier• c:chris.collier@  €M1ke Osborn"  

Reply· To: chris®tonystrickland.com 
._ 1 Attachment, 40.5 KB 

FYI Be on the look oul 

Sent from my Ve~l,zon Wireless BlackBerry 

--Original Message-·· 
From: "Rock Zierman" <rock@  
Date: Men, 17 May 2010 10:03:25 
To: <Jeneves@  
Cc: <ehris@tonystrickland.com> 
Subject: VCRP 

Pis cut a check for $2,000 and send to the Ventura CAP from our local account. Thanks! 

Rock 

Yes! J!We would like to help the Ventura County Republican Party by contributing: 

0 $25,000 D S 10,000 D S 5,000 D $2,500 D S 1,000 a OTHERS __ ----------

Contributions to the Ventura County Republican Party are not deductible for federal Income tax pwposes. 

There is no Umit on contributions to the VCRP. Corporate contributions will be used in California elections. 

Contributions to a political party committee llke VCRP for member communications are reportable by the VCRP on 
Its state campaign reports. Such contributions are counted toward the donor's California state "Major Donor Com
mittee" threshold if the donor is :m individual or business entity. A donor becomes a "Major Donor Committee" and 
Is required to file periodic Major Donor reports when the donor has contributed $10,000 or more to all state and lo
cal candidates, political party committees and candid:~te support P ACs that support state :~nd local candidates, and 
ballot measure committees. Gov. Code§§ 82013.84200,84200.3,84203, 84204 and 84215. 

Because mch contributions are related to state and local campaigning, they ;are not •contributions" under the Fed
eral Election Campaign Act. 2 USC§ 431 et seq. For this reason such contributions are not federal contributions and 
do not rount against any donor's aggregate contribution limits to federal candidates, federal committees of political 
parties or federal PACs. 

Credit Card Contributions 

0 MasterCard D Visa D Amex 
Amoun~S ______________________ ___ 

Credit Card # Exp. 

Please make all checks payable to: "Ventura County Republican Party" 

c/o: Matthew Jubitz (213) 973· 2001 Fax: (213) 652-1005 
and send to: 515 S. Figueroa Street, 16th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90071 

YOUR CONTRIBUTION CANNOT BE ACCEmp WITHOUT THIS INFOBMAIION. 

VCRP000720 



l'outNamt 

Tide 

City s ... Zip 

Pbooc ~IAddrw 

Oca.padoa 

Paid for by the Ventura County Republican Party, FPPC# 742080 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

FYI Be on the look out 

chris@tonystrickland.com 
Monday, May 17, 2010 10:25 AM 
Chris Collier; Mike Osborn 
Fw: VCRP 
VCRP member comm. Contribution Form.pdf 

Sent from my Verizon Wireless BlackBerry 

-Original Message--
From: "Rock Zierman" <rock@  
Date: Mon, 17 May 201010:03:25 
To: <jeneves@  
Cc: <chris@tonystrickland.com> 
Subject: VCRP 

Pis cut a check for $2,000 and send to the Ventura CRP from our local account. Thanks! 

Rock 

1 VCRP000036 



Yes! I!We would like to help the Ventura County Republican Party by contributing: 

0 $25,000 0 $10,000 0 $5,000 [J $2,500 0 $1,000 o OTHER$ _____ _ 

Contributions to the Ventura County Republican Party are not deductible for federal income tax purposes. 

There is no limit on contributions to the VCRP. Corporate contributions will be used in California elections. 

Contributions to a political party committee like VCRP for member communications are reportable by the VCRP on 
its state campaign reports. Such contributions are counted toward the donor's California state "Major Donor Com
mittee" threshold if the donor is an individual or business entity. A donor becomes a "Major Donor Committee" and 
is required to flle periodic Major Donor reports when the donor has contributed $10,000 or more to all state and lo
cal candidates, political party committees and candidate support PACs that support state and local candidates, and 
ballot measure committees. Gov. Code§§ 82013, 84200, 84200.3, 84203, 84204 and 84215. 

Because such contributions are related to state and local campaigning, they are not "contributions" under the Fed
eral Election Campaign Act 2 USC§ 431 et seq. For this reason such contributions are not federal contributions and 
do not count against any donor's aggregate contribution limits to federal candidates, federal committees of political 
parties or federal PACs. 

Credit Card Contributions 

0 MasterCard 0 Visa D Amex Amount$. __________________________ _ 

Credit Card# ______________________ Exp. ____ _ 

Your Name 

CompUly Name 

Business Address 

Phone 

Occupation 

Sipature 

Please make all checks payable to: "Ventura County Republican Party" 
c/o: Matthew Jubitz (213) 973-2001 Fax: (213) 652-1005 

and send to: 515 S. Figueroa Street, 16th Floor, Los Angeles, CA 90071 

YOUR CONTRIBUTION CANNOT BE ACCEPTED WITHOUT THIS INFORMATION. 

Spouse's Name 

nde 

Oty State 

Fax EmaU Address 

Employer Spouse Occupation Spouse Employer 

SpouiC Signature Ooint co&ttributlotll only) 

Paid for by the Ventura County Republican Party, FPPC# 742080 

Zip 

VCRP000037 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

INVESTIGATION REPORT 

I CASE NO: 11-0073 CASE NAME: William M. Templeton REPORT NO.: 28 

REPORT DATE: 8/28/14 PAGE 1 of 11 page(s) 

II REPORT TYPE: Interview Summary 

Ill REPORT PREPARED BY: Jeffrey Kamigaki DATE SIGNED: f5-;2tt:6-/Lf 

IV DISTRIBUTION: Angela Brereton 

V INTERVIEW SUMMARY ONLY: 

Interview tape recorded: Yes 

Manner of interview: In Person 

Person(s) interviewed: Matthew Jubitz, represented by Steven Haskins, Stephen Larson (Arent Fox) 

Work address: 555 West 5th Street, 481
h floor, Los Angeles, CA 90013 

Work phone: (213) 443-7556 (Haskins#) 

Home address: 

Home phone: 

VI NARRATIVE: 

On August 20, 2014, I interviewed Matthew Jubitz, P1uvious Group, in person. The interview was held at Arent 
Fox LLP,law office in Los Angeles, CA. Angela Brereton, FPPC Counsel, Steven Haskins, legal counsel for 
Jubitz, and Stephen Larson, legal counsel for Jubitz, were present. In summary, Jubitz said the following: 

Jubitz has been political fundraising since 2002. He currently owns Pluvious Group, which is a California LLC. 
Pluvious Group is a fundraising consulting company. Jubitz started the company in 2007. Pluvious Group does 
statewide fundraising. PLuvious Group primarily does political fundraising. Jubitz indicated that specifically 
people hire Pluvious Group for the Los Angeles County market. Pluvious Group does focus primarily in Los 
Angeles County. In 2010, Pluvious Group did do statewide races, but have not done any since 2010. 

Jubitz started as a "shoulder guy" for Bruce McPherson, as a traveling aide. McPhearson was running for Lt. 
Governor and traveled throughout the state. When the McPhearson campaign ended, Jubitz went to work for 
McPhearson's fundraising consultant in Los Angeles in 2002. In 2007, he worked for Mitt Romney's campaign 
in California, which then led to the creation of Pluvious Group. 
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He indicated that since he is not an attorney, he does not know all the details regarding state campaign 
fundraising regulations. However, Jubitz indicated that he/Pluvious Group tries to be as well informed about 
state campaign fundraising regulations. 

Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group does not handle the filling out and the filing of campaign statements. 
Pluvious Group has become familiar with the campaign reporting forms over the years, but do not handle the 
campaign reporting forms. He indicated that Pluvious Group is not a campaign treasurer. Pluvious Group has 
never done treasury work. Pluvious Group is not qualified to do treasury work for campaigns. Jubitz indicated 
that generally Pluvious Group sends whatever checks to the designated campaign treasurer, who will do the 
reporting requirements. 

Strickland for Controller 2010 Committee: 
Jubitz confirmed that Pluvious Group was contracted to work for the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee. 
He recalled that Pluvious Group was hired by the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee during the first 
quarter of 2010. Jubitz guessed that Tony Strickland hired Pluvious Group, but he was not positive. Jubitz 
could not recall if there was a signed written contract between Pluvious Group and Strickland for Controller 
2010 committee. Jubitz thought there would be a contract, but could not recall if there was one or not. Jubitz 
indicated that usually the length of Pluvious Group's contracts would end with the committees. Pluvious Group 
usually writes December 31 of that year or end of the calendar year on its contracts. 

Jubitz indicated that his role for the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee was fundraising for the campaign 
and reporting directly to the candidate and to whoever Strickland designated. 

Jubitz indicated that the reason Pluvious Group was hired by the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee was 
because Pluvious Group had worked with/for Tony Strickland's Controller race in 2005 and also for Tony 
Strickland's state senate race. Jubitz added that other reasons his company was hired by Tony Strickland was 
because Pluvious Group has a great reputation in fundraising and that Tony Strickland was a previous client. 

Jubitz confirmed that the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee was paying Pluvious Group's 
salary/commission. Pluvious Group would receive payments in the form of checks. Jubitz indicated that there 
was certainly a commission component in the contract between Pluvious Group and Strickland for Controller 
2010. Often times there would be a retainer in the contract, but Jubitz could not recall. He guessed it was 
probably a straight commission, but would have to review the contract. 

Jubitz indicated that the services/duties that Pluvious Group had under the contract with the Tony Strickland 
campaign was to market to donors and communities. Pluvious Group would create fundraising materials, throw 
fundraisers, organize fundraisers, plan fundraisers, develop invites, email and fax lists, and report to the 
campaign as donations came in. 

Jubitz's relationship with Tony Strickland began with Jubitz's former firm in 2005 when he was first running 
for Controller in 2005. After Jubitz left his former firm in 2006, he re-established a relationship with Tony 
Strickland in 2008 with Pluvious Group. 

Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group worked very closely with Tony Strickland in 2010 during Strickland's 
campaign for Controller in 2010. Jubitz and Pluvious Group did not work closely with staff members of the 
Strickland for Controller 2010 committee/campaign. Jubitz indicated that his interaction with staff members of 
the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee/campaign was very limited. He indicated that the only interaction 
with Strickland for Controller 2010 staff was sending items to the treasurer via Fedex and interacting with the 
campaign manager for scheduling items such as fundraisers. 
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When scheduling any fundraiser, Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group would deal directly with the candidate. 
Jubitz confirmed that he would report directly to Tony Strickland. Jubitz indicated that when Pluvious Group 
would send out marketing and/or communications materials for fundraising events, the materials were approved 
by either the candidate or Chris Wangsaporn. 

Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group was not involved in any campaign strategy (non-financial) for the 
Strickland for Controller 2010 committee. He indicated that he was not part of any decision making capabilities 
regarding how Strickland for Controller 2010 campaign funds were to be spent and to be spent on during the 
campaign. Jubitz indicated that there were no conversations between him and the Strickland for Controller 
committee regarding campaign strategies in June 2010. 

Marina Stavrakas: 
Jubitz described Marina Stavrakas as Pluvious Group's accountant/manager. She assists on Pluvious Group's 
client accounts. She handles day to day operations for the company. 

Chris Wangsaporn: 
Jubitz recognized Chris Wangsaporn. He could not remember what Wangsaporn's title was during the 
Strickland for Controller 2010 campaign. He could not remember what Wangsaporn's exact role was during 
the Strickland for Controller 2010 campaign. Jubizt indicated that he would have probably interacted with 
Wangsaporn fairly frequently. 

Lysa Ray: 
Jubitz indicated that Ray is a treasurer. He acknowledged that Ray was probably the campaign treasurer for the 
Strickland for Controller 2010 committee. Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group would send fedex/mail to her 
office. The only time he would have interacted with Ray would be if there was a problem with a check. 

Tony Strickland: 
Jubitz indicated that he interacted with Tony Strickland frequently through emails, phone calls etc during the 
2010 campaign. Jubitz's interactions with Strickland was to plan future fundraisers and to inform Strickland 
how fundraising was going. 

Audra Strickland: 
Jubitz identified Audra Strickland as Tony Strickland's wife. He did not interact with Audra Strickland. Jubitz 
indicated that he has never worked with Audra Strickland as a political fundraiser. However, Jubitz 
acknowledged that if Pluvious Group had a contract with Audra Strickland, the company did not do much, but 
Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group did not have a contract with Audra Strickland. 

Joel Angeles: 
Jubitz indicated that he knows Joel Angeles. Jubitz believed that Angeles was Audra Strickland's chief of staff 
in the Assembly. Jubitz got to know Angeles at fundraising events, but does not know him well. Jubitz did not 
know what Angeles' role was in 2010. Jubitz did not interact with Angeles in 2010. 
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Exhibit #1 & 2: (Subpoenaed documents) 
Jubitz reviewed the Pluvious Group Progress Report dated 9/17/2010 (Exhibit# 1) and a Pluvious Progress 
Report dated 10/8/2010 (Exhibit #2). He confirmed that it appeared that the goal was to raise $2 million for the 
Strickland for Controller 2010 campaign. Jubitz did not know why $2 million was the goal. Jubitz indicated 
that the goal can change during the campaign. Jubitz did not recall any conversations or discussions with 
anyone from the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee about the $2 million goal. Jubitz indicated that if he 
had not seen the Pluvious Progress Reports, he would not have been able to remember the $2 million goal. 

Jubitz indicated that committees, in general, usually have a number (fundraising goal) in mind that it would like 
to raise. In general, committees set the goals on how expensive the race will be. Pluvious Group will tell the 
committee whether the goal is realistic. Pluvious Group does not set the fundraising goal for the campaign. 
Pluvious Group gives an accounting of what is coming in and the committee will refer to the accounting 
whether or not they are going to achieve the goal or not. 

Jubitz indicated that it is a collaboration when determining who will be donors. You will meet supporters who 
wilJ throw out names of people that you should get in contact with and Pluvious Group has a list of contributors 
that it has spent time in developing. Pluvious Group does a lot of mass marketing to contributors. Often times 
it is the same contributors giving to different political campaigns. In general, when a candidate hires Pluvious 
Group, the candidate is getting the list of contributors to target certain contributors. Pluvious Group also 
updates the candidate's contributor list as well such as contact information. 

Jubitz indicated, in reference to Exhibit #I and #2, the VCRP (Ventura County Republican Party) contribution 
and Stanislaus County (Stanislaus Republican Central Committee) Contribution were listed on the Pluvious 
Group Progress Report in a sense that party contributions are notoriously flaky and cannot be counted upon. 
Jubitz did not know if the $45,000.00 contribution from the VCRP listed on the Pluvious Progress Report 
(Exhibit #1) was already contributed or if it was a pledge. Jubitz indicated that he did not know if the $32,400 
contribution from the Stanislaus County listed on the Pluvious Progress Report (Exhibit #2) was already 
contributed or if it was a pledge. Jubitz indicated that you could not tell from the progress report (Exhibit# I) if 
Stanislaus County was "in or not." Jubitz could not remember if it was his idea or the Strickland for Controller 
2010 committee's idea to separate the VCRP and Stanislaus contributions. Jubitz indicated that perhaps Tony 
Strickland told Pluvious Group to separate out the VCRP and Stanislaus contributions, but he does not 
remember. 

Exhibit #3: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz reviewed an email thread dated 6/15/2010. He indicated that "Joe" must be Joe Justin. Jubitz did not 
know what Justin's role was in 2010. Jubitz identified Justin as a campaign consultant. Jubitz indicated that 
Justin was working for the Strickland for Controller 2010. 

Jubitiz indicated that Kirk Hutson might have been Tony Strickland's chief of staff in 2010, but was not 
positive. Jubitz indicated that Huston was involved with scheduling for the Strickland for Controller 2010 
campaign from Jubitz's perspective. Most of the interaction was for scheduling of the candidate's time. 

Jubitz did not remember what was meant in the email, "Have we received party money?" 

Jubitz did not remember what was meant in the email, "we should add a line item for vc gop." 

Exhibit #4: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz reviewed the contract between Matthew Jubitz Consulting and Ventura County Republican Party. 
Matthew Jubitz Consulting was approached by the Ventura County Republican Party for help with fundraising 
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in 2010. Jubitz indicated that he could not remember throwing a large fundraiser in 2010 for the Ventura 
County Republican Party, but wanted Matthew Jubitz Consulting under contract in case the Ventura County 
Republican Party wanted to host a fundraiser. Jubitz indicated that it was a standard contract. He informed me 
that sometimes contracts would be tailored to the specific client, but could not confirm if this was a tailored 
contract for the Ventura County Republican Party. Jubitz confirmed that this was a signed contract between 
Matthew Jubitz Consulting and Ventura County Republican Party. 

Jubitz clarified that Matthew Jubitz Consulting is a dba (doing business as). In a marketing perspective, Jubitz 
put his name on items so people would know it was him because the name, Pluvious Group, is a nonsensical 
name. 

Jubitz contracted with the Ventura County Republican Party because it was a potential client and they wanted to 
do fundraising events. Jubitz indicated that before this contract (Exhibit #4), Pluvious Group had previously 
worked with the Ventura Republican Party. Jubitz recalled doing a big dinner for the Ventura Republican 
Party, but could not remember if it was in 2010. Jubitz believed that he actually contracted with the Ventura 
County Republican Party before 2010, but he would have to check records to determine if that is accurate or 
not. 

Mike Osborn: 
At the time the contract was entered into between Matthew Jubitz Consulting and Ventura County Republican 
Party, Jubitz indicated that he knew Mike Osborn. Jubitz recalled, to the best of his knowledge, that Mike 
Osborn was the chairman of the Ventura County Republican Party in 2010. Jubitz indicated that Osborn has 
been active in the Ventura County and region for a long time. Jubitz could not recall interacting with Osborn 
often during the 20 10 election year. 

Jubitz confirmed that the point of contact at the Ventura County Republican Party was Mike Osborn. He 
indicated that there was not much communication in 2010 with the Ventura County Republican Party because 
there was not a lot of fundraising. Jubitz indicated that neither he nor any of his employees worked closely with 
any officials affiliated with the Ventura County Republican Party in 2010. 

Jubotz indicated that he was not a member of the Ventura County Republican Party or a due paying member. 
However, he later indicated that he would have to check to make sure. 

Jubitz confirmed that the services that were provided to the Ventura County Republican Party in 2010 was 
fundraising, putting together marketing materials such as contribution forms, envelopes, invitations, letters, 
faxes and design work for the marketing materials. Jubitz referenced the contract (Exhibit #4) under I e. 
Development/disbursement of fundraising materials as the services it provided to Ventura County Republican 
Party. 

Jubitz's responsibilities as the fundraiser for the Ventura County Republican Party in 2010, were to send out 
marketing materials and collecting checks, hatching the checks and sending the checks to the treasurer. Jubitz 
indicated that he did not have any decision making abilities in how the Ventura County Republican Party was to 
raise money. He recalled most decisions would have been signed off by Mike Osborn. 

Jubitz confirmed that the company received a commission under the contract. 

Arkardy Milgram: 
Jubitz indicated that he is familiar with the name. He knew Milgram was an active member of the Ventura 
County Republican Party, but never worked/interacted with him in 2010. 
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Chris Collier: 
Jubitz believed Collier was a volunteer for the Ventura County Republican Party in 2010, but he was not 
positive. Jubitz indicated that he probably interacted with Collier during the 2010 election, but could not recall 
any specific interactions. 

Kelly Lawler: 
Jubitz confirmed that he was familiar with the name Kelly Lawler. He identified her as a treasurer. Jubiitz was 
not sure who Lawler worked for in 2010. He met her through a Ventura County Republican Party event. He 
indicated that he did not have much interaction with Lawler except for sending contribution checks that 
Pluvious group had obtained from contributors. 

Stanislaus Republican Central Committee: 
Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group has never contracted or worked with the Stanislaus Republican Central 
Committee. 

Jubitz indicated that he did not know or work with the following individauls: Cami Rodgers, Executive Director 
for Stanislaus Republican Central Committee; Gary McKinsey, Treasurer for Stanislaus Republican Central 
Committee in 2010; Jim DeMartini, SRCC Chairman in 2010. 

Exhibit #5, 6, 7: (Subpoenaed documents) 
Jubitz confirmed that he recalled the contribution from William Templeton for $13,000.00 after he reviewed the 
copy of the contribution check (Exhibit #7). Jubitz did not remember whether the name, William Templeton, 
came from the Pluvious Group, Strickland for Controller 2010 committee, or anyone else's contributors list. 

Jubitz confirmed that he has met William Templeton. He does not know a lot about him. He met Templeton 
for the first time at a fundraiser through the Romney campaign. During the 2010 campaign, Jubitz guessed that 
he interacted with Templeton every month. Jubitz indicated that Templeton was an important contributor for 
the Strickland for Controller 2010, but all contributors were important. Whether the contribution was $500 to 
whatever amount, they are all important. 

Jubitz indicated that Templeton likes Tony Strickland. However, Jubitz did not know specifics why Templeton 
contributed to the Strickland for Controller 20 I 0 committee. 

Jubitz confirmed that Pluvious Group designed the contribution form (Exhibit #6). He emailed the contribution 
form to Templton. Pluvious Group followed up on it (contribution). In general, contributors will ask for some 
type of clarification about how to write the checks because breaking apart primary and general and how to get 
to $13,000.00. Jubitz indicated that, generally, the contributor check will come into the office, he will make a 
copy of the check and send it to the committee's treasurer. 

Jubitz indicated that he could not recall if the Templeton contribution check for $13,000.00 came directly to the 
Pluvious Group. He described that in the normal course of business, contributions would have come into the 
Pluvious Group's office. Jubitz indicated that the check could have gone directly to the treasurer of the 
Strickland for Controller 2010, but could not remember. 

Exhibit #8, 9, 10: (Subpoenaed documents) 
Jubitz indicated that he only recalled the contribution check from Templeton for $32,400 (Exhibit #10) to the 
Ventura County Republican Party (VCRP) after he reviewed the email communications (Exhibit #8, #9) and the 
check (Exhibit# 10). 
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In reference to Exhibit #8, the email dated June 4, 2010 from Matthew Jubitz toW. M. Templeton, Subject 
VCRP contribution form, Jubitz recalled that there are four funds at the VCRP. One fund is a federal PAC. 
One is a candidate direct fund. Jubitz could not recall what the other two funds were at the VCRP. To the best 
of his knowledge, he indicated that individuals could contribute to any of the funds. He did not know the 
purpose of the candidate direct fund at the VCRP or how the fund was used. 

Jubitz did not recall how it was decided to have Templeton contribute to the VCRP. He did not know how 
Templeton arrived at the amount of $32,400.00 or why the specific amount of $32,400.00 from Templeton was 
contributed to the VCRP. He indicated that the amount was the limit based on the contribution form (Exhibit 
#10). 

Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group emailed Templeton the contribution form and had the contribution check 
come into the Pluvious Group's office. He confirmed that the Pluvious Group collected and tracked all the 
pledges. The main function of Pluvious Group was to make sure the contribution check would come in for the 
VCRP. The treasurer of the VCRP would not contact donors to find out if the money came in or not. The 
treasurer would report and deposit the money. 

In general, once Pluvious Group would receive a contribution check, the check would go to wherever the party 
committee wants it to go to. Jubitz confirmed that it can happen frequently where a contribution check would 
go straight to the central committee and not to the Pluvious Group. 

Exhibit #11: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz could not recall any specifics about the email. He indicated that it is common practice that whenever a 
phone call was received or a message left, he would be notified by email to return the call. He indicated that the 
date, June I I, 2010, did not mean anything to him in connection with the 2010 election. 

Exhibit #12: (Subpoenaed document) 
In reference to the email dated August 13,2010 from W.M. Templeton to Matthew Jubitz, subject: Strickland 
Event, Jubitz indicated that Templeton was active on a lot of races that Pluvious Group was a part of in 2010. 

In reference to the email on August 14, 2010 from Tony Strickland to Matthew Jubitz, subject: RE: Templeton, 
Jubitz indicated that Tony Strickland had asked Templeton to support the Ventura County Republican Party. 
However, Jubitz indicated that Templeton had been asked to support a lot of efforts. 

Exhibit #13: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz confirmed that Tony Strickland asked Templeton to support the Ventura County Republican Party. 
Jubitz did not know if Tony Strickland had asked Templeton to contribute $32,400.00. 

Exhibit #14: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz indicated that he did not know why Templeton decided not to give $32,400.00 to Stanislaus Republican 
Central Committee. He indicated that he did not have any role in getting Templeton to contribute to the 
Stanislaus Republican Central Committee. He could not recall any individuals from the Stanislaus Republican 
Central Committee who may have been involved in getting a contribution from Templeton to the Stanislaus 
Republican Central Committee. 

Exhibit #15: (Subpoenaed document) 
Pluvious Group was not responsible to send out 461 Major Donor Statements to contributors. Jubitz indicated 
that the treasurers were responsible sending out the 46 I forms. However, he indicated that the reason he tried to 
send out the 461 forms to contributors, at the time, was because people were getting fined. Even though 
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Pluvious Group knew the treasurers were sending out the 461 forms to contributors, Pluvious Group wanted to 
remind donors one more time about being a major donor. 

Exhibit #16: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz indicated that he does not know if Pluvious Group received the check from Templeton to Stanislaus 
County Republican Party for $15,000.00. 

Andrew Barth: 
Jubitz indicated that Andrew Barth is a long, time supporter to the Republican Party and all sorts of causes. 

Exhibit #17: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz indicated that Pluvious Group's role in obtaining the $15,000.00 contribution from Andrew Barth was the 
same as other contributions from contributors. Pluvious Group emailed him (Barth) contribution information 
and the contribution check from Barth came back to Pluvious Group's office, where it (Barth's contribution 
check) was then FedEx to the Ventura County Republican Party. 

Jubitz indicated he could not recall any other contributions made by Andrew Barth to the Ventura County 
Republican Party and/or Tony Strickalnd for Controller 2010 committee. 

Exhibit #18: (Subpoenaed document) 
In reference to the email dated June 28, 2010 (12:48 PM) from Chris Wangsaporn to Tony Strickland and 
Matthew Jubitz, Subject: FYI VCGOP Check, Jubitz indicated he could not remember what Chris Wangsaporn 
was talking about in the email. He indicated that he did not know why Chris Wangsaporn identified the two 
amounts, $32,400.00 from Templeton and $15,000.00 from Barth in the email. 

Jubitz indicated that you can infer from the email (Exhibit #18) that it is discussing Pluvious Group's 
commission and that is the reason why he (Jubitz) was on the email because it was discussing the 15% 
commission. 

Jubitz indicated that he did not know what it meant in the email that "After taking out 2800 for VCRP 7%." 

In reference to the email dated June 28,2010 (19:54:28) from Tony Strickland to Chris Wangsaporn and 
Matthew Jubitz, Subject: Re: FYI VCGOP Check, Jubitz guessed that it must have been about his commission. 
Jubitz indicated that it is not uncommon in the business of political fundraising to have compensation 
discussions. He guessed that in the email it is being discussed that he (Jub.itz) is being taking out of the 
commission loop. Jubitz did not know what Team Meg meant in the email. He indicated that they were all 
part of the same ticket on the Whitman victory committee, but did not know what was being discussed in the 
email about team meg. 

In reference to the email dated June 28, 2010 (19:56:43) from Tony Strickland to Chris Wangsaporn and 
Matthew Jubitz, Subject: Re: FYI VCGOP check, Jubitz indicated that he did not have any understanding in 
what was being referenced in the email about the $45,000.00 check. Jubitz indicated that he was on this email 
because they (Strickland and Wangsapom) wanted to know if any other donations are coming in for the end of 
the month. 

Jubitz indicated that he did not have knowledge regarding a check to be cut for $45,000.00. He indicated that 
he was not informed about a $45,000.00 check because Pluvious Group does not cut any checks. 

Jubitz indicated that he does not know who "Mike" is being referenced in the email. 
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Exhibit #19: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz reviewed the copies of two contribution checks totaling $45,000: One dated 6/28/2010 from VCRP to 
Strickland for Controller 2010 for $44,100.00. The second check dated 6/30/2010 from VCRP to Strickland for 
Controller 2010 for $900. After reviewing the checks, Jubitz indicated that he had no knowledge why the 
Ventura County Republican Party made out two separate contributions (one on 6/28/2010 and 6/30/2010) 
totaling $45,000.00 to Strickland for Controller 20 I 0. 

He indicated that he did not know why Ventura County Republican Party gave specifically $45,000.00 to 
Strickland for Controller 2010. 

He indicated that he had no role or involvement in connection with the Ventura County Republican Party's two 
contributions totaling $45,000.00 to Strickland for Controller 2010. 

Exhibit #20: (Subpoenaed document) 
In the email thread, Jubitz indicated that, in general, all campaign committees, especially in September, are 
under pressure to do whatever it is that they are going to do such as advertising for example. Committees are 
always looking for money during September. In general, Pluvious Group was under constant pressure to raise 
more money for campaign committees during September. Jubitz did not know why Chris Wangsaporn emailed 
him informing him that Mike Osborn needed money for his central committee (VCRP). He indicated that he 
was not informed why Osborn needed money for his central committee or what the money was to be used for by 
the Ventura County Republican Party. 

Exhibit #21: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz indicated that he did not have any role or involvement regarding the contribution check for $6,000.00 
from Ventura County Republican Party to Strickland for Controller 2010. 

Jubitz indicated that he could not remember if anyone from the Ventura County Republican informed him about 
making the $6,000.00 contribution to Strickland for Controller 2010. 

Exhibit #22: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz did not recall the $20,000.00 contribution from Stanislaus Republican Central Committee to Strickland 
for Controller 2010. He did not recall any specific conversations about the contribution, but at some point he 
was sure that they (Pluvious Group) were made aware that a check came in or was a pledge from the Stanislaus 
Republican Central Committee. 

He did not recall anyone informing him about what the Strickland for Controller 2010 committee campaign 
strategy was for the Fall of 20 I 0. Jubitz did not know if the $20,000.00 was meant for anything specific for the 
Strickland for Controller 2010 committee. 

Exhibit #23: (Subpoenaed document) 
In reference to the email dated October 5, 2010 (5:57PM) from Matthew Jubitz to W.M. Templeton, Subject: 
Dinner with Tony Strickland 10112 ?PM, Jubitz confirmed that Pluvious Group organized the event for 
10/1212010. He indicated that Pluvious Group has a long relationship with supporters and try to get together 
with them whenever they can. He indicated that Pluvious Group would invite top supporters in any given 
market to stay in contact because no wants to feel that they (supporters) are forgotten. 

Exhibit #24: (Subpoenaed document) 
The event on 10/1212010 was originally set to be at Lucky's Restaurant, but moved to Sly's Restaurant. Jubitz 
could not remember if the names in the email were the final list in who attended the event at Sly's restaurant, 
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but pretty close. Jubitz believed that Templeton attended the event. Jubitz indicated he was sure he had 
interacted with Templeton at the event since it was a small group who attended. He could not recall any 
specifics regarding his conversations with Templeton at the event. Jubitz confirmed that Andrew Barth did not 
attend the event at Sly's Restaurant. Jubitz confirmed that Tony Strickland attended the event. Jubitz indicated 
that everyone sat at one big table. Jubitz indicated that the topics of conversation among all of the attendees 
were the 2010 Controllers race and the political environment, in general, in 2010. 

Jubitz confirmed that there were conversations between Tony Strickland and the other attendees at Sly's 
Restaurant regarding the need for more contributions. Jubitz indicated that there is always the need to make a 
pitch to ask people to ask their friends to contribute. 

Exhibit #25: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz confirmed that Pluvious group organized the event at Dee and Andy Puzder. The purpose of the event 
was for fundraising only for Strickland's 2010 Controller's race. 

1 ubitz could not remember if Templeton attended the event or not. He confirmed that Barth was not in 
attendance at the event. 

Jubitz attended the event. He did not remember any conversations specifically where Strickland discussed 
campaign strategies at the event. 

Exhibit #26: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz did not remember the event at Moorpark Country Club on April 24, 2010. He did not remember 
doing/organizing an event at Moorpark Country Club. 

Exhibit #27, 28: (Subpoenaed documents) 
Jubitz confirmed that Pluvious Group did plan/organize the event at the Hyatt in Thousand Oaks, CA held on 
September 23, 2010. The event did occur. The purpose of the event was to raise money for the Strickland 
Controller 2010 campaign. Jubitz did not remember if Templeton attended the event. Jubitz did not remember 
if Barth attended the event. Jubitz confirmed that Tony Strickland attended the event. He recalled that 
Strickland probably gave a stump speech at the event, but could not remember any specific details what 
Strickland said at the event. Jubitz did not remember any specific conversations with anyone at the event 
regarding contributions or campaign strategies in connection with the Strickland for Controller 20 I 0 campaign. 

Exhibit #29: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz did not remember why Chris Wangsaporn requested to utilize Pluvious group's Los Angeles address for 
Tony Strickland mail. He indicated that Strickland for Controller 2010 campaign did have its own campaign 
headquarters. 

Exhibit #30: (Subpoenaed document) 
Jubitz indicated that he knows John Hurley by reputation. He did not know what Hurley does for a living. He 
did not know if Hurley was a contributor to the Strickland for Controller 20 I 0 committee. He did not know if 
Hurley was a contributor to the Ventura County Republican Party. He did not know if Hurley was a contributor 
to the Stanislaus Republican Central Committee. 

Jubitz identified Michael Sowers as a fundraising consultant in the Sacramento area. He did not know if 
Sowers was a fundraiser for the Strickland for Controller 20 I 0 committee. He did not know if Sowers did 
fundraising events for Ventura County Republican Party (Central Committee) in 2010. He did not know if 
Sowers did fundraising events for Stanislaus Republican Central Committee in 2010. 
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Pluvious Group's Commission: 
Angela Brereton, FPPC, senior commission counsel, asked follow up questions regarding commission that 
Pluvious Group received from the central committees. Jubitz confirmed that he gets a commission when a 
campaign contribution comes in for one of his clients. He confirmed that when Pluvious Group was getting 
contributions for Tony Strickland's Controller 2010 committee. Pluvious Group received a certain percentage 
of the contributions that came in. Jubitz was not sure if Pluvious Group got a commission from the contribution 
Templeton made to the Ventura County Republican Party. Jubitz did not recall ifPluvious Group received a 
commission from the contribution that Templeton made to the Stanislaus Republican Central Committee. 
Jubitz indicated that Stanislaus Republican Central Committee has never been a client of Pluvious Group. 
Jubitz indicated that he can look for records regarding commission received from the Ventura County 
Republican Party in connection with Templeton's contribution to the Ventura County Republican Party. 
Jubitz's legal counsel indicated that they can follow up if there are any records regarding commissions received 
from Ventura County Republican Party and Stanislaus Republican Central Committee in connection with 
Templeton's contributions to both central committees in 2010. 
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION 

INVESTIGATION REPORT 

CASE NO: ll-0073 CASE NAME: Tony Strickland REPORT NO.: 31 

REPORT DATE: 8/13/15 PAGE 1 of 4 page(s) 

II REPORT TYPE: Interview Summary 

III REPORT PREPARED BY: Jeffrey Kamigaki DATE SIGNED: C0-} .3- }~ 

IV DISTRIBUTION: Angela Brereton 

V INTERVIEW SUMMARY ONLY: 

Interview tape recorded: No 

Manner of interview: Telephone 

Person(s) interviewed: Andrew Barth, Capital Group, contributor 

Work address: 

Work phone:  

Home address: 

Home phone:  

VI NARRATNE: 

On August 13, 2015, I interviewed Andrew Barth, Capital Group, via telephone. Angela Brereton, FPPC 
Counsel- Enforcement Division, was present. In summary, Barth said the following: 

Barth indicated that he has been a supporter of the Republican Party and Republican candidates in California for 
a number of years. He clarified that he has mostly supported Republican candidates, but not exclusively. He 
confirmed that he used to make contributions to local and state Republican candidates before 2011. Barth 
indicated that in 2011 the Security Exchange Commission (SEC) changed a filing requirement that made it 
more difficult to contribute. Since 2011, he had not made contributions to candidates. Currently he does not 
make contributions to candidates at any level. Barth works for an investment management (Capital Group). 

Barth confirmed that he has made contributions to theCA Republican Party. In 2010, Barth confirmed that he 
made a contribution to theCA Republican Party. He has not made any contributions to theCA Republican 
Party since 20 11 . 
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Barth indicated that he does not know Tony Strickland on a personal level. He has never had any relationship 
(friendship) with Tony Strickland. He added that he did not know Strickland in 2010. Barth could not 
remember if he had supported Tony Strickland before 20 I 0. He indicated that if he did, it would be in past 461 
filings. 

Exhibit 1 & 2: 
Barth remembered making the $6,500.00 contribution to Strickland for Controller 2010. 

Barth indicated that he could not recall hosting a fundraiser supporting Tony Strickland for his 2010 State 
Controller race. He recalled that he could have agreed to allow his name to be used on a political fundraising 
flyer. Barth added that although he could not remember hosting a fundraiser, he did remember that he could 
have done a "meet & greet" for Tony Strickland in 2010. He had no recollection of whether or not Capital 
Group hosted a fund raiser for Tony Strickland's 20 I 0 State Controller race. 

Exhibit 3: 
Barth indicated that he never seen this exhibit before. He added that he did not know what the event titled, 
"Downtown - Schwarzenneger" was about. 

Barth could not remember the function of Strickland's campaign finance committee for 2010 State Controller. 
He recalled that he possibly gave permission to allow his name to be on the campaign finance committee. Barth 
indicated that it was not unusual for people to agree to allow the use of their names without doing anything. 

Exhibit 1 & 4: 
Barth remembered making the $15,000.00 contribution to the Ventura County Republican Party. He could not 
recall why he specifically contributed to the Ventura County Republican Party. He indicated that he has 
contributed to other local central committees in the past. He identified Los Angeles County Republican Party as 
one of the central committees he has contributed to in the past. Barth indicated that the contribution to the 
Ventura County Republican Party was likely to support Republican voter registration and get out of the vote 
efforts. He indicated that contributing to the central committees was the same reason he contributed to theCA 
Republican Party - for supporting Republican voter registration and get out the vote efforts. 

Exhibit 5: 
Barth could not remember any specific conversations or meetings he had with Matthew Jubitz regarding the 
contributions he made to Tony Strickland and the Ventura County Republican Party. He indicated, but was not 
sure, that he probably received the Strickland contribution form and the Ventura County Republican 
contribution form because he recalled Jubitz being the fundraiser for both Strickland and the Ventura County 
Republican Party at the same time in 2010. Barth added that he viewed the Strickland for Controller 2010 and 
the Ventura County Republican Party as two separate entities and not linked. Barth could not remember any 
specific discussions with Jubitz regarding the $15,000.00 contribution to the Ventura County Republican Party. 

Barth could not specifically remember if someone requested or suggested that he make the $15,000.00 to the 
Ventura County Republican Party. 

Barth indicated that at the time when he made the $15,000.00 contribution to the Ventura County Republican 
Party, he believed his contribution was for Republican voter registration and get out the vote efforts for the 
2010 election. He indicated that he had no knowledge or understanding that his contribution to the Ventura 
Republican would go to Tony Strickland. He indicated that he knew that party central committees can give to 
candidates directly. Barth reiterated that he believed his contribution was for voter registration and get out the 
vote efforts . 
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Barth could not remember why he made the $6,500.00 contribution and $15,000.00 contribution on the same 
day, June 11,2010. He indicated that he likely wrote the checks the same day as you would if you were writing 
checks for bills to pay at the same time. He indicated that there was no specific reason why the contribution 
checks were written on the same day. 

Barth indicated that he was probably aware of the 2010 contribution limits for individual contributors to 
California statewide candidates. He indicated that he tried to make his contributions in accordance with the 
contribution limits. Barth could not remember why he only contributed $6,500.00 to Tony Strickland's 
committee during the 2010 general election and not in the 2010 primary election. He indicated that at the time 
of his $6,500.00 contribution to Strickland, he did not know Strickland really well. He speculated that this 
might have been the reason why he only gave to Strickland in the general election. 

Barth indicated that he had no intentions to avoid contribution limits in 2010. He contributed to the Ventura 
County Republican Party to help the Party with its efforts to register voters and get out the vote. Barth 
indicated that when he has given to the Republican Party central committees it has hoped/expected to broadly 
help numerous Republicans. 

Barth could not remember any conversations and/or meetings with Tony Strickland regarding the $15,000.00 
contribution to the Ventura County Republican Party. 

Barth could not remember any conversations and/ or meetings with anyone who represented the Stricldand 
campaign regarding the $15,000.00 contribution to the Ventura County Republican Party. Barth clarified that 
this included Jubitz. He could not remember any conversations/meetings with Jubitz regarding the $15,000.00 
contribution to the Ventura County Republican Party. 

Barth could not remember any conversations and/or meetings with Mike Osborn, chairman of the Ventura 
County Republican Party, regarding the $15,000.00 contribution. He indicated that he never knew Mike 
Osborn and does not remember him at all. 

Barth indicated that he could not recall if he made any other contributions to the Ventura County Republican 
Party prior 2010. He indicated that he has given to other central committees such as the Los Angeles County 
Republican Party and the CA Republican Party. He recalled that he gave to the Los Angeles County 
Republican Party for voter registration and get out the vote efforts. 

Exhibit 6: 
Barth speculated that the email was probably in reference to a meet and greet with Tony Strickland for August 
3 J, 2010. Barth indicated that he did recognize several of the attendees listed on the email, but could not 
remember whether they had already given, were planning to give, or not give at all to Strickland for his 2010 
State Controller campaign. 

Exhibit 7: 
Barth indicated that he could not recall what Victory 2010- Taking Back California was about/purpose. Barth 
referred to his 461 major donor statement (Exhibit I) and speculated that his $25,000.00 contribution to the 
California Republican Party on 9/16/2010 might have been related to the Victory 2010- Taking Back 
California. He indicated that he does not know if the Victory 20 lO was related to the Tony Strickland campaign 
for 20 I 0 State Controller. 

Barth indicated that he had no idea whether or not the $25.000.00 to the California Republican Party was related 
to Tony Strickland for State Controller in 2010. He doubted that the $25,000.00 was related to Tony Strickland. 
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Barth reviewed Exhibit 7 further and speculated that Victory 2010 appeared to be a broad/wide Republican 
party fundraising effort to help state wide candidate races. Barth identified several companies listed on Exhibit 
7 to be California companies. Barth reiterated that this is only a guess he was making in determining what 
Victory 2010 was about. Barth asked who produced Exhibit 7. He was informed that Jubitz provided Exhibit 7. 
Barth described Jubitz to be very well organized. 

Barth indicated that he started to get to know Jubitz in 20 I 0 during the election through fundraising. He met 
Jubitz through fundraising and got to know him more recently over the last three years. Barth started a not for
profit called Beat the Streets - Los Angeles which is a youth development program to provide sport programs 
for under privileged kids and areas. The program serves 600 - 700 kids. Barth indicated that one of the staff 
members for the program, who is also serves as a board member for Beat the Streets Los Angeles was able to 
get office space for the program. The office happened to be next door to Jubitz office on Figueroa Street in Los 
Angeles. 
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